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JUDGES: Paul G. Hyman, Chief Judge.
OPINION BY: Pau! G. Hyman

OPINION

MEMORANDUM OPINTON
DETERMINING THAT FRAUD HAS HOT
BEEN PERPETRATED UPON THE
COURT

THIS MATTER came before the Court for
an evidentiary heating January 29-31, 2007
upon Norman Lanson and Meryl Lanson (col-
lectively the "Lansons™) Emergency Motion to
Reopen Bankrupfcy-Case (the "Motion to Re-
open") in which the Lansons claimed that a
fraud had been perpetrated upon this Court,
The purpose of the evidentiary hearing was to
determine whether Ronald C. Kopplow, Esq.,
Kopplow & Flynn, P.A. (collectively, "Ko

plow"), Marc Cooper, Esq,, Cooper & Wolfe,
P.A. (collectively, "Cooper"), Sonya Salkin,
Esq., and Malnik & Salkin, P.A. (collectively,
"Salkin") (all collectively, the “Attorneys"),
perpetrated a fraud upon this Court in connec-
tion with their applications to be retained as
general or special connsel.

Procedural Posture

The Debtor, Baron's Stores, [*2] Inc.
("Baron's"), filed a Chapter 11 petition on Sep-
tember 9, 1997, and Salkin was retained as its
bankruptey counsel. On November 16, 1998,
Baron's obtained an Order Confirming Debtor's
and Compmittee's Joint Amended Plan of Ligui-
dation ("Confirmation Order"). A Final Decree
closing the case was entered on December 10,

1999,

Prior to Baron's seeking bankruptcy relief,
Kopplow and Cooper served as counsel for
Baron's in a state court lawsuit for professional
malpractice (the "MBA Action"), against its
former accounting firm, Morrison, Brown, Ar-
giz & Company, P.A, ("MBA"), After Baron's
filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy relief, Kop-
plow and Cooper were retained as counsel to
continue prosecuting the MBA Action.

On September 7, 1999, the Lanscns and
Baron's filed a legal malpractice action against
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Kopplow and Cooper in the Circuit Court of
the Eleventh Judicial Circuit in and for Dade
County, Florida (the "Legal Malpractice Ac-
tion"). In November, 2001 the Lansons
amended the Legal Malpractice Action to in-
clude Salkin as a defendant, The Lansons and
Baron's argued in the Legal Malpractice Action
that the Attomeys had perpetrated a fraud on
this Court in connection with their refention
[*3] as counse] for Baron's during the Chapter
11 case. Judge Norman Gerstein, the presiding
Judge in the Legal Malpractice Action, advised
the Lansons that allegations of fraud upon the
Bankruptey Court should be resolved by the
Bankruptcy Court, Consequently on March 11,
2005, the Lansons filed their Emergency Mo-
tion To Reopen Case with this Court, The Lan-
sons were subsequently joined by Baron's (col-
lectively with the Lansons, the "Movants"). A
hearing was held on April 4, 2005, and on April
7, 2005 the Court entered an Order Reopening

the case "for the purpose of adjudicating the-

merits of the claims that [the Attorneys] perpe-
trated a fraud on this Court,” J4

On October 5, 2006 the Court entered an
Order Bifurcating Fraud Hearing and Agreed
Order Denying Motion for Protective Order as
Moot, in which the Court ruled that "this matter
will be bifurcated into a liability hearing and, if
necessary upon a finding that the Attorneys
perpetrated a fraud, a subsequent hearing con-
cerning the remedy." Jd

On January 22, 2007, the parties filed a Bi-
lateral Prehearing Stipulation. The Court, hav-
ing conducted a thres day hearing to receive
evidence and testimony with respect [*4] to
liability for the "fraud on the Court” allega-
tions, makes the following findings of fact and
conclusions of law.

FINDINGS OF FACT

The Lansons were officers of Baron's and
were its sole sharcholders. Norman Lanson
owned 99% of the Debtor’s common stock, and
his wife, Meryl Lanson, owned 1%. Thus, the

Lansons controlled the Debtor at all relevant
times,

1. Prepetition Retention of Kopplow and Coo-
per for the MBA Action

In December 1993, Baron's discovered that
its Chief Financial Officer, David Peterson
("Peterson”), had stolen substantial sums of
meney from Baron's, On January 12, 1994,
Baron's and Noman Lanson individually,
signed an "Authority to Represent” and "Cli-
ents Bill of Rights" (collectively, the "MBA
Retention Agreement") whereby they retained
Kopplow and Cooper to represent them in the
litigation related to the embezzlement on a con-
tingency fee basis, See Ex, 1,

In November 1995, Kopplow and Cooper
filed the MBA Action on behalf of Baron's
against Baron's former auditors, MBA. The
MBA Action alleged that MBA had committed
professional malpractice by failing to detect
Peterson's embezzlement, Baron's was the only
named plaintiff in the [*5] MBA Action. Kop-
plow and Cooper did not file a lawsuit against
MBA on behalf of Norman Lanson or Meryl
Lanson individually.

2. Retention af Salkin as General Bankrupicy
Counsel

When Baron's later experienced financial
difficulties, Kopplow referred the Lansons to
bankruptcy attorney Salkin. Kopplow testified
that he knew Salkin professionally from a pre-
vious case in 1994 in which Salkin represented
one of Kopplow's clients. On or about July 15,
1997, Salkin met with the Lansons, Kopplow,
and others regarding the possibility of Baron's
fiting for bankruptcy protection. Baron's overall
financial condition, the current status of
Baron's financing, the MBA Action, and the
impact of a Chapter 11 filing on the MBA Ac-
tion were discussed at this meeting. The reten-
tion of counsel for postpetition prosecution of
the MBA Action was also discussed at this
meeting. Salkin advised that Kopplow and
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Cooper would have to be retained as special
counsel by the Debtor-in-Possession with the
Court's approval or, alternatively, that Baron's
could reject its retention agreement with Kop-
plow and Cooper, and hire new counsel.

The Lansons and Gary 8. Tedesco
("Tedesco”), Baron's controller, [*6) signed
the retention letter dated July 18, 1997 that
Salkin sent to Baron's, and pursuant to which,
Baron's retained Salkin as bankruptey counsel
("Salkin Retention Letter"). See Ex. 45. The
Salkin Retention Letler states that Salkin was
retained for the purpose of preparing and filing
a Chapter 11 bankruptcy on behalf of Baron's,
The Salkin Retention Letter also addressed in
detail the duties and responsibilities of a
Debtor-In-Possession in a Chapter 11 case.
Salkin's retainer was paid by Baron's on Tuly
22, 1997.

Baron's filed its Chapter 11 petition on Sep-
tember 9, 1997, On September 10, 1997, Salkin
filed her Motion for Authority to Retain Attor-
ney for DIP, ("General Counsel Retention Mo-
tion"). On February 2, 1998, the Court entered
an Order Approving the Retention of Salkin
Nunc Pro Tune to July 18, 1997 ("Order Em-
ploying General Counsel™). In Salkin's affidavit
in support of the General Counsel Retention
Motion ("Salkin's Retention Affidavit™), Salkin
statcs that neither she nor her firm represent
any interest adverse to Debtor, and they are dis-
interested persons as required by 11 U.8.C, §
327(a). In Salkin's Retention Affidavit, Salkin
also [*7] states that neither she nor her firm
have any connection with "the dcbtor, creditor,
any other party in interest, their respective at-
torneys and accountants, the U.S. Trustee, or
any person employed in the office of the U.S.
Trustee in connection with this case.”

3. Retention of Kopplow and Cooper as Spe-
cial Counsel

After filing for bankruptey, Baron's decided

that Kopplow and Cooper should continue as
counsel for the MBA Action. On October 23,

1997, Salkin filed a Motion to Authorize Em-
ployment of Kopplow as Special Counsel
("Kepplow Special Counsel Retention Mo-
tion"), and a Motion to Authorize Employment
of Cooper as Special Counsel ("Cooper Special
Counsel Retention Motion"){collectively, the
"Special Counsel Retention Motions"). On Oc-
tober 31, 1997, the Court entered an Order
Granting Motion to Employ Kopplow as Spe-
cial Counsel, and an Order Granting Motion to
Employ Cooper as Special Counsel (collec-
tively, the “Special Counsel Retention Or-

ders").

Although Kopplow testified that he did not
remember the specifics of their conversation,
Salkin testified that prior to filing the Special
Counsel Retention Motions, she discussed with
Kopplow the retention [*8) process including
the required affidavits in support of retention.
Salkin also testified that she told Kopplow that
the purpose of the affidavits was to establish
that special counsel did not represent any inter-
ests adverse to Baron's with respect to the
claims asserted against MBA. Salkin testified
that she discussed with Kopplow whether he
had any ielationships with the parties on
Baron's creditor list. Salkin further testified that
she asked Kopplow to make similar inquiry of
Cooper so that he could furnish a similar affj-
davit in support of the Cooper Special Counsel
Retention Motion. Cooper testified that he did
not see Baron's petition or its creditor list at the
time. '

In Kopplow's affidavit in support of Kop-
plow's Special Counsel Retention Motion and
in Cooper’s affidavit in support of Cooper's
Special Counsel Retention Motion (collec-
tively, the "Special Counsel Affidavits"), both
Kopplow and Cooper state that they do not
hold or represent any interest adverse to the
estate and that they arc disinterested as required
by 11 US.C. § 321(a), Copies of the MBA Re-
tention Agreement were attached to the Special
Counsel Affidavits. The Special [*9] Counsel
Retention Motions, the Special Counsel Affi-
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davits, and the proposed Special Counsel Re-
tention Orders were prepared by Salkin's firm.
Based upon the Special Counsel Retention Mo-
tions, the Special Counsel Affidavits, and the
lack of any objection thereto, the Court signed
the proposed Special Counsel Retention Orders
which stated that neither Kopplow nor Cooper
held any interest adverse to the estate, and that
both Kopplow and Cooper were disinterested
as required by Bankruptcy Rule 2014 and J/
US.C. § 327 (a). Salkin testified that she failed
to properly proof read the retention documents,
and that the references therein to § 327 (a), in-
stead of § 327 (g), were mistakes, The Special
Counsel Retention Orders also provided for the
employment of Kopplow and Cooper as special
counsel on a general retainer pursuant to 1]
U.S.C. § 330. This was inconsistent with the
MBA Retention Agreement attached to the
Special Counsel Retention Affidavits in that the
MBA Retention Agreement provided for a con-
tingency fee arrangement, The Lansons did not
appeal, or seck rehearing of the Special Coun-
sel Retention Orders,

[¥10] 4. Rachlin, Cohen & Holtz

Morris Hollander ("Hollander") of Rachlin,
Cohen & Holtz ("RCH") was Baron's prepeti-
tion forensic accounting witness in the MBA
Action. Salkin knew RCH principal Laurie
Holtz ("Holtz") from the unrelated Premium
Sales case in which Holtz served as an account-
ing expert in opposition to clients represented
by Salkin. On October 23, 1997, Salkin filed &
Motion to Authorize Employment of Accounting
Expert for Debtor-In-Possession ("Motion to
Employ Accountant") so that Hollander and
RCH could continue to work postpetition in the
MBA Action as Baron's expert accounting wit-
ness, Salkin's office prepared the Motion to
Employ Accountant, Hollander's supporting
affidavit ("Hollander Affidavit”), and the pro-
posed order thereon, The Motion to Employ
Accountant states that Hollander and RCH "do
not represent any adverse interest to the debtor,
except to the limited extent that they hold a pre-

petition claim, which claim is duly scheduled
on Debtor's Schedule F, pursuant to the at-
tached [Hollander Affidavit]." The attached
Hollander Affidavit further discloses that
"Rachlin, Cohen & Holtz P.A. holds a pre-
petition claim against the estate of [sic] the
amount [*{1] of $§ 18,896.00 which sum is
duly scheduled in Debtor's Schedule F." See
Ex. W, On October 30, 1997 the Court signed
the proposed Order Approving the Motion io
Employ Accountant ("Order Retaining Ac-
countant") which stated that the firm of RCH
held "no interest adverse to the estate and the
ratters upon which they are engaged, and that
their employment is necessary and would be in
the best interests of the estate.” Thus, although
RCH's prepetition claim was disclosed in both
the Motion to Employ Accountant and the Hol-
lander Affidavit, the Order Retaining Account-
ant was incorrect insofar as it did not include
"exception” language indicating that RCH held
no adverse interest excepr to the extent that
RCH held a prepetition claim.

5. Bank Atlantic Post Petition Finan cing

At the July 15, 1997 initial meeting in
Salkin's office, the Lansons and Tedesco, the
officers of Baron's, expressed concern ahout
refinancing Baron's existing loan with its pri-
mary lender BankAtlantic. Baron's needed to
refinance so that it would be able to buy inven-
tory for the upcoming Christmas season. Salkin
testified that she was asked by Tedesco to try to
find postpetition financing [*12] that would
not require personal guarantees by the officers.
Salkin further testified that she sought financ-
ing from three entities, City National Bank,
First Southern Bank, and BankAtlantic. City
National Bank declined the loan. First Southern
Bank and BankAtlantic both required personal
guarantees by the Lansons, however BankAt-
lantic's other lending terms were more favor-
able than those of First Southern Bank, Thus,
Salkin sought and obtained Court approval for
Baron's BankAtlantic postpetition financing
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which required personal guarantees by the Lan-
3018,

6. Court Approval of MBA Settlement & Spe-
cial Counsel Fees

In Februaty and March of 1998, Salkin,
Kopplow, Cooper, the Lansons, and attorneys
for several creditors attended two negotiation
and mediation sessions related to the MBA Ac-
tion, Both sessions resulted in impasscs.

Ultimately, MBA offered to settle Baron's
claims for § 2.4 million and Baron's accepted.
The Lansons approved the settlement on behalf
of Baron's, by signing the April 9, 1998 letter
sent to them by Salkin ("April 9 Letter"). See
Ex.15, The Lansons' handwritten notation on
the April 9 Letter states, "BankAdtlantic is to be
paid prior to legal [*13] fees as per our agree-
ment with BankAtlantic.” Salkin's April 9 Let-
ter also stated that "by not filing a Joint Plan
with the Unsecured Creditors’ Committee, you
will be foregoing the $ 100,000 offered previ-
ously, but you will incur far less expense to the
estate by way of attorneys' fees and maintain
control during the liquidation process." After
signing the April $ Letter, the Lansons appar-
ently changed their position and decided to file
a joint plan with the Committee, Salkin sent a
subsequent letter dated April 20, 1998 ("April
20 Letter") in which Salkin stated “you have
instructed this office to agree to settle the un-
derlying Siate Court action against [MBA] for
2.4 million dollars, and to file a Joini Liguida-
tion Plan whereby BankAtlantic will be paid
first, after payment of administration and prior-
ity claims, followed by the leasing company,
the surety company, and the general unsecured
creditors." The Lansons signed and returned
this letter to Salkin, See Ex. Q.

On May 18, 1998, after a hearing on notice
to all creditors and parties in interest including
the Lansons, the Court entered the Order
Granting Motion For Approval of Seitlement of
Debior's Litigation against [*14]  Morrison,
Brown, Argiz & Co.,, P.A. by Baron's Stores,

Inc. ("MBA Settlement Order"), in which both
the settlement of the MBA Action and the
award of fees to Kopplow and Cooper were
approved, The MBA Settlement Order awarded
Kopplow and Cooper a total of $ 600,000.00 in
attorneys' fees and $ 146,327.04 in costs,

After the Court approved the MBA scttle-
ment, the Lansons refused to sign the proposed
release prepared by MBA's counsel because the
proposed 1elease included signature lines for
the Lansons individually. The Lansons' per-
sonal counsel, Harvey Kopelowitz ("Ko-
pelowitz"), reviewed and negotiated the lan-
guage in the release. See Exs. BB, DD, CCCC,
EEEE. On June 19, 1998, Nomman Lanson
signed a release respecting the MBA Action
solely in his corporate capacity as President of
Baron's.

The Lansons did not appeal, or seek rehear-
ing of the MBA Settlement Order. However,
Norman Lanson advised Kopplow and Cooper
by letter dated July 8, 1998 that he disputed
their fees as follows:

[Slince to date my interests, in
my opinion, have not been fully
protected, and, in fact, you have re-
frained from taking appropriate
steps to protect my personal inter-
ests, you are hereby advised [*15]
that any attorneys fees you receive
are disputed by me and until such
time as my personal interests are
fully protected and resolved you
have no right to any proceeds in
any settlement of this matter that
does not contemplate, protect and
finally resolve my interests... See
Ex. 17.

On July 17, 1998, Kopplow and Cooper
filed a Motion to Determine Entitlement to At-
torney's Fees ("Fee Entitlement Motion") in
which they sought a determination of their entj-
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tlement to take into income the fees awarded by
the Cowrt on May 18, 1998. On August 27,
1998 the Lansons, individually, filed an Affida-
vit in Opposition 10 Ronald C. Kopplow and
Marc Cooper's Entitlement to Attorneys' Fees
in the Bankruptcy Court, asserting that Kop-
plow and Cooper had deceived the Court by
failing to disclose relationships with other par-
lies in interest in connection with their retention
as special counsel. On August 31, 1998 the
Court held a hearing on the Fee Entitlement
Motion. Following the hearing, in which the
Lansons were represented by their individnal
attorney, Mark Osherow ("QOsherow"), the
Court entered an Order Determining Entitle-
ment to Atiorneys’ Fees ("Fee Entitlement Or-
der"). The Fee [*16] Entitlement Order deter-
mined that the fees at issue had been earned by
Kopplow and Cooper solely as a result of their
representation of the Debtor pursuant to g con-
tingent fee contract previously approved by the
Court. The Fee Entitlement Order further de-
termined that the settlement upon which the fee
was based was solely that of the Debtor, and
that Norman Lanson, individually, was not en-
titled to any portion of that settlement, Lastly
the Fee Entitlement Order determined that
Norman Lanson, individually, had no claim to
any portion of the contingent fee earned by
Kopplow and Cooper. The Lansons did not ap-
peal, or seek rehearing of the Fee Entitlement

Order.
7. Plan Confirmation

Baron's commenced plan negotiations with
the Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors
("Committee") in, or around, March, 1998, In
carly April, Committee counsel Larry Gottlieb
("Gottlieb") corresponded with Salkin about the
terms of, a liquidating plan, including provi-
sions which would compensate Norman Lanson
as an officer of Baron's to ensure his coopera-
tion. See Exs. 56-58,61. Salkin's time records
for April 16, 1998 indicate that Salkin had a
telephone confetence with Mery] Lanson [*17]
"regarding anmuity, life insurance, and again

advised of need to obtain personal counsel.”
See Ex, HHH, Bates Stamp No. §8023854,

In an April 23, 1998 letter from Kopelowity,
to Gottlieb ("April 23 Letter"), Kopelowitz
states that he had been retained by the Lansons.
See Ex. DDDDD. The April 23 Letter indicated
that Kopelowitz would address with the Com-
mittee the following issues concerning the Lan-
sons: 1) the ownership of Norman Lanson's
One Million Dollar Life insurance policy; 2)
the ownership of Meryl Lanson's Mercedes
automobile; 3) the $ 100,000 (or $ 75,000) ad-
ditional consideration due Norman; and 4) the
refund of the difference between the guarantee
on the utility and equipment lease versus the
dividend payable to these creditors as a divi-
dend to Norman, Other correspondence by Ko-
pelowitz indicates that he represented the Lan-
sons personally with respect to their execution
of releases required for settling the MBA Ac-
tion, See Exs. BB, DD, CCCC, FEEE. Thus,
from at least April 23, 1998, the Lansons were
formally represented by personal counsel.,

In the summer of 1998, Osherow also ap-
peared in this case as personal counsel repre-
senting the Lansons in: 1) opposing [*18] the
fees sought by Kopplow and Cooper; 2) con-
cluding negotiations that Kopelowitz had
commenced with Committes counsel regarding
the Lansons' personal claims and interests in
connection with Baron's First Amended Joint
Disclosure Statement and the First Amended
Joint Plan of Liquidation. See Exs. SSSS,
WWWW, YYYY; 3) filing the Motion of Nor-
mar Lanson to Determine Ownership of a Cer-
tain Annuity Identified in Section VI of Disclo-
sure Statement and for Order Granting Claim
of Ownership of Annuity and for Guaranteed
Payment Under Plan to Norman Lanson; and
4) prosecuting a Motion for Fxpenses and Costs
on Behalf of Norman Lanson and Meryl Lanson
and/or lo Permit Filing of Administrative Proof
of Claim.

On November 16, 1998, the Court catered
the Confirmation Order which confirmed the
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Joint Amended Plan of Liquidation filed by the

Debtor and the Committee. The record reflects

that the Lansons did not object to confirmation
of the Joint Amended Plan of Liquidation, and
that they gach voted individually to accept the
plan. See Ex. Y.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

The Cowrt has jurisdiction over this matter
pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1334, This is a [*19]
core proceeding pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 157(b)

(2) (A).
A. Fraud Upon the Court

The Movants contend that the Attorneys
perpetrated a fraud upon the Court in connec-
tion with their retention as counsel to Baron's
during its Chapter 11 case by not disclosing
their alleged "litany of connections and con-
flicts-of-intercst”. * The Movants argue that the
Attorneys' allegedly fraudulent non-disclosures
vitiate final non-appealable orders of this Court
including: 1) the MBA Settlement Order en-
tered May 18, 1998 which approved both the
settlement of the MBA Action and the award of
fees to Kopplow and Cooper; 2)the Fee Enti-
tlement Order entered August 31, 1998 which
granted Kopplow and Cooper's motion deter-
mining their entitlement to fees over the objece
tions of the Lansons; and 3) the Confirmation
Order entered November 16, 1998, It is nearly
nine years since the Court entered the above
orders. It is nearly ten years since the Court en~
tered the orders retaining the Attorneys. None
of the above-mentioned orders was appealed. In
the Court's experience, the lodging of allega-
tions of fraud upon the Court to collaterally at-
tack the Court's final orders nearly [*20) a
decade after the alleged fraud was to have
taken place is extraordinary. See also Herring
v. United States of America, 424 F.3d 384, 386
(3d Cir. 2005)("Actions for fraud upon the
court are so rare that this Court has not previ-
ously had the occasion to articulate a legal
definition of the concept. The concept of fraud
upon the court challenges the very principle

upon which our judicial system is based: the
finality of a judgment").

1 The Movants also asserted that the At-
torneys violated The Florida Bar Rules of
Professional Conduct, The Court offers
1o opinion with respect to these asser-
tions as such matters are within the pur-
view of the Florida Bar

The theory of "fraud upon the court" and
the finality of judgments was digcussed in Ha-
zel-dilas Glass Co. v. Hartford Empire Co.,
322 U8, 238, 64 8, Ct. 997, 88 L. Ed. 1250,
1944 Dec. Comm'r Pat, 675 (1944).

Federal courts ..long ago estab-
lished the general rule that they
would not alter or set aside their
Jjudgments after the expiration of
the term at which the judgments
were finally [*21] entered. This
salutary general rule springs from
the belief that in most instances
society is best served by putting an
end to litigation after a case has
been tried and judgment entered.
This has not meant, however, that
a judgment finally entered has ever
been regarded as completely im-
mune from impeachment after the
term, From the beginning there has
cxisted along side the term rule a
rule of equity to the effect that un-
der certain circumstances, one of
which is after-discovered fraud, re-
lief will be granted against judg-
ments regardless of the term of
their entry,

Id. gt 244 (citations omitted),

Courts have held that only the most egre-
gious conduct constitutes a "fraud on the court"
for purposes of collaterally attacking an order
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or judgment. As stated in Rozier v. Ford Motor
Co., 573 F.2d 1332, 1338 (5th Cir. 1978) *:

Generally speaking, only the
most egregious rnisconduct, such
as bribery of a judge or members
of a jury, or the fabrication of evi-
dence by a party in which an attor-
ney is implicated, will constitute
fraud on the court. Less egregious
misconduct, such as nondisclosure
to the court of facts allegedly per-
tinent to the [*22] matter before it,
will not ordinarily rise to the level
of fraud on the court. Jd. (citations
omitted).

2 In Bonner v. City of Prichard, 661
F.2d 1206, 1209 (11th Cir.1981) (en
bang) the Eleventh Circuit adopted as
binding precedent all the decisions of the
former Fifth Circuit handed down prior
to the close of business on September 30,
1981.

Fraud upon the court must be proven by
clear and convincing evidence, and embraces
"only that species of fraud which does or at-
tempts to defile the court itself, or is a frand
perpetrated by officers of the court so that the
judicial machinery cannot perform in the usual
manner its impartial task of adjudicating
cases." King v. First American Investigations,
Inc., 287 F. 3d 91, 95 (2d Cir. 2002). "Fraud
upon the court' is narrowly construed, It has
been found only in those instances where the
fraud vitiates the court's ability 1o reach an im-
partial disposition of the case before it." Day-
enport Recyeling Assoc. v. CIR, 220 F.3d
1255, 1262 (11th Cir. 2000) [¥23] (citations
amitted).

In Pearson v. First NH Mortgage Corp.,
200 F.3d 30 (Ist Cir. 1999) the Court of Ap-

peals stated:

"[Flraud on the court' occurs
where it can be demonstrated,
clearly and convincingly, that a
party has sentiently set in motion
some unconscionable scheme cal-
culated to interfere with the judi-
cial system's ability impartially to
adjudicate a matter.” Fraud on the
court is an “intentional deflecting
of the Court from knowing all the
facts necessary to make an appro-
priate judicial decision on the mat-
ter before it,"

Jd. at 37 (internal citations omitted),

The issue in this case is fraud upon the
court, The case law instructs that intent is nec-
essary to a finding of the existence of fraud
upon the court. The Movants argue that the At-
torneys' subjective intent is not the relevant in-
quiry and that the Court should determine the
Attorneys' intent objectively, * The Court does
not agree. The Court finds that setting in mo-
tion an unconscionable scheme to interfere with
the Court's ability to impartially adjudicate a
matter requires subjective intent, The question
here is whether there was an intentional omis-
sion [*24] or misstatement in the Attorneys'
retention affidavits and motions, not whether
there was an omission or misstatement, ¥raud
upon the Court requires more than a mistake, it
requires subjective intent, Tn reviewing the ex-
tensive evidentiary record, the Court finds that
the Attorneys did not perpetrate a fraud on this
Couurt.

3 The Movants cite Pearson v. First NH
Mortgage Corp., 200 F.3d 30 (Ist Cir.
1999) as support for this proposition. The
issue in Pearson was whether it was error
for the bankruptcy court to deny the
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movant an evidentiary hearing after the
movant claimed there had been a fraud
on the court. The Pearson court used an
objective standard to determine whether
the movant had a colorable claim of
frand upon the court, The actnal question
of whether there had been fraud upon the
court was remanded to the lower court
for an evidentiary hearing. fd In this
matter the Court conducted a 3-day evi-
deniiary hearing on the issue of whether
there was a fraud upon the Court. The
Movants additional citation 1o Jn re Berz,
173 B.R. 159 (N.D. Il 1994) is inappo-
site. Berz is a § 523(a)(2) credit card debt
dischargeability action.

[*251 B. Kopplow and Cooper

The "fraud on the court" claims asserted
against Kopplow and Cooper can be considered
together and are summarized as follows:

(1) The claim that statements in
the Kopplow and Cooper retention
papers were fraudulent because
Kopplow and Cooper were not
"disinterested as required by 11
U.S.C. § 327 (a)."

(2) The claim that Kopplow
and Cooper's retention papers,
wherein it stated they represented
no interests adverse to the Debtor,
were fraudulent because Kopplow
and Cooper represented Norman
Lanson who was the alleged holder
of a competing claim against
MBA.

(3) The claim that Kopplow
and Cooper defrauded the Coutt by
failing to disclose their prepetition
relationships with various creditors
and parties in interest.

For the reasons discussed below, the Court
finds that Kopplow and Cooper did not intend
to deceive the Court or misrepresent any mate-
rial facts to it, and thus they did not perpetrate a
fraud on the Court.

L 11 US.C. §327(a) & (e) - "Disinterest-
edness"

The statements in the Special Counsel Re-
tention Motions and the Special Counsel Reten-
tion Affidavits [*26] that Kopplow and Cooper
were "disinterested as required by 11 U.S.C, §
327(a)" were incorrect, given that Kopplow and
Cooper represented Baron's prepetition and
therefore held contingent prepetition claims
against Baron's for attorneys' fees and costs.
Special counsel are generally employed under
11 US.C. § 327(e), and general bankruptcy
counse] are employed under 11 U.5.C. § 327
(a). Section 327(a) requires the professional to
be “disinterested." In contrast, § 327(c) does
not require “"disinterestedness.” Nevertheless,
attorneys employed as special counsel under §
327 (e) cannot represent or hold any interest
adverse to the debtor or to the estate with re-
spect to the matter on which such attorney is to

" be employed. In re Molten Metal Technology,

Ine, 289 B.R. 505, 510 (Bankr. D. Mass.
2003). Kopplow and Cooper are not bankruptey
lawyers. Indeed, Cooper testified that this was
the first time he had ever been retained as spe-
cial counsel in a bankruptey case. Kopplow and
Cooper eredibly testified that, having no bank-
niptey law experience, they did not understand
the difference between sections 327 [*27] (a)
and (e), or the import of the reference in their
affidavits to being "disinterested as required by
11 U.8.C. § 327(a)". They both assumed that
the retention papers, which had been prepared
by Salkin's office, wete accurate and in proper
form. While Kopplow stated that he had seen
the Special Counsel Retention Motions and
Special Counsel Retention Orders, Cooper tes-
tified that he had not seen them at or about the
time of his and Kopplow's retention. Both
Kopplow and Cooper testified that they relied
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on Salkin as bankruptey counsel for preparation
of the retention papers, and that they believed
all necessary disclosures had been made by vir-
tue of attaching the MBA Retention Agreement
to their Special Counsel Retention Affidavits.
Both Kopplow and Cooper testified that they
did not believe they held any conflict of interest
that would have prevented them from continu-
ing their representation of Baron's in the MBA
Action. As to the Movants' allegation that Kop-
plow participated in plan negotiations thereby
evidencing his intent to be employed as general
counsel, the Court finds that Kopplow's limited
participation in plan negotiations subsequent to
his retention [*28] as special counsel does not
evidence that he intended to be employed as
general counsel. .

The Court notes that the underlined upper-
case titles of the Special Counsel Retention
Motions each read: "MOTION TO EMPLOY
SPECIAL. COUNSEL FOR DEBTOR-IN-
POSSESSION." The Special Counsel Reten-
tion Orders prepared by Salkin are similarly
titled: "ORDER APPROVING
EMPLOYMENT OF SPECIAL COUNSEL
FOR DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION." Thus while
the Court itself did not notice the inconsistent §
327(a) references in the Special Counsel Reten-
tion Orders, it was always the Court’s under-
standing that it was approving retention of spe-
cial counsel on a contingency fee basis pursu-
ant to § 327 (e) since this is the basis on which
special counsel are normally retained for prose-
cuting state court actions based upon negli-
gence, and because the MBA Retention
Agreement clearly provided for a contingency
fee arrangement, The Movants argument that
the Attorneys "engaged in a scheme to defraud
this Court into believing that it had approved
the prepetition contingency fee agreement as
the postpetition fee agreement, when in point of
fact, this Court only approved the retention of
Kopplow and Cooper under & 'general retainer™
[*29] is pot at all persuasive. The date of the
discovery of Peterson's defalcation, December
4, 1993, is displayed prominently on the face of

the MBA Retention Agreement. The document
was signed January 12, 1994. The 3-page MBA
Retention Agresment was attached to a 2-page
affidavit, If the Atiorneys intended to defrand
the Court they would not have attached the
MBA Retention Agreement (which provided
for a contingency fee arrangement) to their
Special Counsel Retention Affidavits, The At-
torneys did not attempt to hide or deceive the
Court, nor did the Court have to "hunt around
and ferret" out this information from thousands
of pages of documents. Compare in re
Jermings, 199 Fed. Appx. 845, 848 (11th Cir.
2006) (rejecting attorneys' argument that dis-
closures were discernible from the record in a
proceeding where 11 related debtors filed for
reorganization and their cases had been con-
solidated for administrative purposes).

Salkin accepted responsibility for the incor-
rect references to § 327 (a) instead of § 327(¢),
and the incorrect inclusion of the "“disinter-
ested” language in the Kopplow and Cooper
retention documents. Salkin testified that these
papers were prepared [*30] by a junior lawyer
in her firm and that the errors were the result of
careless proofreading, as opposed to an intent
to deceive the Court. Salkin's explanation is
credible, Moreover there was no evidence pre-
sented of any plausible motive Salkin could
have had to perpetrate an intentional fraud on
the Court in connection with a routine matter
such as retention of special counsel. The
Movants' argument that the Attorneys con-
spired to get Kopplow and Cooper paid under a
void contingency fee agreement is not sup-
ported by the evidence, Thus, the Court finds
that the references to disinterestedness - which
are required by § 327 (a) but not required by §
327 (&) - were mistakes. As noted previously,
fraud upon the Court requires more than a mere
mistake. The Court finds that there was no in-
tent by any of the Attorneys to mislead the
Court.

2. The Lansons Individual Claims Against
MBA
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The Movants' assert that Kopplow and
Cooper fraudulently failed to disclose that they
represented Norman Lanson who held an inter-
est adverse to the estate with respect to the mat-
ter for which Kopplow and Cooper were en-
gaged, ie., the MBA Action. The Lansong as-
sert that Kopplow and Cooper [*31] repre-
sented them individually in the MBA settle-
ment conferences. The Court notes that Kop-
plow and Cooper's retention as special counsal
fequired them to participate in the MBA set-
tlement conferences, however the Court finds
that their participation was on behalf of Baron's
not the Lansons individually, The Court also
finds that the Lansons' assertion that Kopplow
and Cooper represented them individually in
plan negotiations was not supported by the evi-
dence,

The Movants' main argument is that Kop-
plow and Cooper represented both the Lansons
and Baron's, and that the Lansons held individ-
ual claims against MBA, that put the Lansons in
conflict with Baron's because both the Lansons
and Baron's were seeking recovery from a
common limited fund. The Court need not and
does not decide whether the Lansons had meri-
torious individual claims against MBA. For
purposes of determining whether the Attorneys
perpettated & fraud on the Court, the Coust
must determine only whether the Attormeys be-
lieved that the Lansons had individual claims
against MBA.,

The MBA Retention Agreement reflects
that Kopplow and Cooper were retained by
both Baron's and Norman Lanson individually.
‘ See Ex. 1. [*32] Cooper testified that the
MBA Retention Agreement was drafted that
way because Peterson's defalcation had Just
been discovered and it was unclear at the time
whether he had embezzjed from Baron's, the
Lansons, or both. Cooper further testified how-
ever, that by the time they filed the MBA Ac-
tion in 1995, he and Kopplow had determined
that only Baron's had a cause of action against

MBA, and therefore they named Baron's as the
sole plaintiff in the action.

4 cooper testified that at the time of
their prepetition retention, both he and
Kopplow thought Norman Lanson was
the sole shareholder and that they later
learned that Meryl Lanson owned 1% of
Baron's stock.

Cooper, who had primary responsibility for
identifying appropriate legal theoties and for
crafting the causes of action in the complaint
against MBA, testified at length concerning the
basis of his determination that the Lansons did
not possess individual claims against MBA., *
Cooper's analysis was also conveyed in g de-
tailed letter to Osherow, the Lansons' [*33])
individual attorney, on August 26, 1998 just
prior to the hearing on Cooper and Kopplow's
Fee Entitlement Motion. See Ex. 91. The
Movants argue that even if the Attorneys did
not believe the Lansons had individual claims
at the inception of the lawsuit, they became
aware of the Lansons' individual clajms on
February 13, 1998 through the deposition tes-
timony of Cynthia Cohen ("Cohen"y who stated
that the Lansons suffered individual reputa-
tional damages. Both Kopplow and Cooper tes-
tified that Cohen's testimony did not change
their analysis or their conclusion that the Lap-
sons did not have individual claims apainst
MBA. Cooper testified that Cohen was a retai)
industry specialist, not a lawyer. In Cooper's
opinion Cohen had little, if any, understanding
of claims cognizable under Florida law. Thus,
the Court finds that there was no credible evi-
dence that any of the Attorneys believed that
the Lansons had individual claims  against
MBA which would have made them the holders
of adverse interests to the estate with respect to
Kopplow and Cooper's retention ay special
counsel. Cooper testified that when the MBA
Action was filed, and later whep the bank-
Tuptey petition was filed, he believed [*34)
that the interests of the Lansons were one and
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the same as Baron's, that being to maximize
Baron's recovery from MBA.

5 On January 25, 2007 the Attorneys
filed a Memorandum of Law Regarding
Lansons’ Alleged "individual Claims"
which discusses the case law relied upon,
and the legal analysis pursvant to which,
Cooper and Kopplow determined that the
Lansons had no individual claims against
MBA.

The Court finds that the Attorneys lacked
intent to deceive the Court as to this matter,
The MBA Retention Agreement identifies
Norman Lanson individually as a client retain-
ing Kopplow and Cooper. The inclusion of this
document as the sole exhibit to the Special
Counsel Retention Affidavits is inconsistent
with an inference that Kopplow, Cooper, or
Salkin sought to conceal this alleged "conflict"
from the Court. The Court finds that at all rele-
vant times, the Attorneys believed in good faith
that the Lansons did not possess independent
individual claims against MBA. Therefore, the
Attorneys did not perpetrate (*35] a fraud
upon the Court, as alleged, by failing to iden-
tify the Lansons as clients who held an interest
adverse to the estate with respect to the MBA
Action,

3. Kopplow's and Cooper's Other Prepeti-
tion Relationships

Finally, the Movants assert that Kopplow
and Cooper perpetrated a fraud on this Court by
failing to disclose the following prepetition re-
lationships:

a. Reef Apartments

Kopplow represented Reef Apartments
General Partnership and its general partners in
4 state court declaratory action relating to an
insurance coverage dispute arising out of an
automobile accident. The general partners of
Reef Apartments included Norman Lanson
(who, though not named individually in the
Reef lawsuit, shared in the retainer paid to

Kopplow); Alan M. Glist (who would become
chairman of the Committee in Baron's Chapter
11 case); Glist's father, Hal; Marc Levine, a
member of Baron's management team; David
Peterson, controller of, and future embezzier
from, Baron's; Jeffrey Perlow and Mark
Perlman, both of whom were altorneys for
Glist.

Kopplow represented Reef Apartments
General Partnership and its general partner
from 1988 to 1990, approximately seven years
before the [*36] 1997 filing of Kopplow's Spe-
cial Counse! Retention Motion and Affidavil,
Kopplow's involvement in the Reef Apartment
litigation was unrelated to the MBA, Action.

b. Mar¢ Levine

Kopplow also represented Marc Levine in a
1994 personal injury action arising from an
automobile accident that was unrelated to his
employment at Baron's. That case was dis-
missed in October, 1996,

c. Charlie Alberts

Between 1997 and 1999, Kopplow repre-
sented Charlie Alberts, who was g non-creditor,
ex-employee of Baron's on the petition date, in
& personal injury action arising from an auto-
mobile accident that was untelated to his em-
ployment at Baron's.

d. Laurie Holiz

Laurie Holtz is a principail of RCH, an ac-
counting firm that served, both prepetition and
postpetition, as Baron's expert forensic ac-
countant in the MBA Action. Cooper knew
Holtz because they were both retained by the
Receiver in the unrelated Premium Sales litiga-
tion which commenced in the early 1990s. Be-
yond having a single common client in previ-
ous unrelated litigation, Cooper had no per-
sonal or professional relationship with Holtz,

&. The Neiman Litigation

Kopplow represented Baron's in a series of
lawsuits {*37] seeking to recover homes and
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assets purchased by Peterson with funds he
embezzled from Baron's. Neiman had con-
fracted to purchase some of these assets. Dur-
ing the ensuing litigation, Kopplow represented
Norman Lanson as an officer of Baron's at a
deposition. The litigation was eventually scitled
and releases were executed by Norman Lanson
as President of Baron's, and by Norman and
Meryl Lanson individually. The assertion that
Kopplow represented Norman Lanson in any
capacity other than ag an officer of Baron's is
not supported by the evidence,

The Court finds that the failure to disclose
the above described relationships did not con-
stitute 8 fraud on the Court, There was no evi-
dence that Kopplow or Cooper understood that
they were required to disclose these attenuated
relationships or connections as part of their re-
tention as special counsel, There was also no
evidence that Salkin even knew of these rela-
tionships until after the case had been closed
and the Lansons filed their Legal Malpractice
Action.

The Movants also asserted at the eviden-
liary hearing that the Attorneys defrauded the
Court by failing to disclose that Salkin had pre-
viously worked with Kopplow on unrelated
cases, [*38) and that Cooper had previously
worked with Kopplow on unrelated cases. As
to these allegations, the Court notes that if Rule
2014 required disclosure of every ogcasion on
which attorneys worked together on unrelated
cases the resulting volume of disclosures
would, for all practical purposes, render the
disclosure requirement meaningless and
thereby thwart the purpose of the Rule which is
to disclose all relevamt connections so as lo
"subject potentially adverse interests to review
before employment is approved.” fn re Molten
Metal Technology, e, 289 B.R. 505, 511
(Bankr. D. Mass, 2003) (citations omitted).

Thus, the Court concludes that the failure to
disclose the above relationships was not a frand
on the Court,

C. Salkin

As discussed above, Salkin did not perpe-
trate a fraud on the Court in connection with
her role in drafting and filing the retention pa-
pers for Kopplow and Cooper. Baron's remain-
ing claims of Salkin's alleged "fraud on the
court” can be summarized as follows:

(I} The claim that Salkin perpe-
trated a fraud on the Court by con-
cealing RCH's status as a prepeli-
tion creditor, in conpection with
her preparation of the Motion
[*39] to Employ Accountant so
that RCH could continue to serve
as Baron's expert wiiness in the
MBA Action, and that Salkin also
failed to disclose that she worked
with RCH on a previous unrelated
case,

(2) The claim that in addition
to representing Baron's, Salkin also
represented the Lansons individu-
ally during the Chapter 11 case,
and that she fraudulently failed to
disclose this disqualifying conflict
to the Court,

I. RCH Disclosures

The Cowrt finds that Salkin did not perpe-
trate a fraud on the Court in connection with
Baron's postpetition retention of RCH. Con-
trary to the Lansons and Baron's assertion, the
Motion to Employ Accountant and the support-
ing Hollander Affidavit expressly disclosed that
RCH "hoids a pre-petition claim against the
estate in the arnount of § 18,896.00, which sum
is duly scheduled on Debtor's Schedule F." See
Ex. VV. Salkin and RCH both regularly work
on bankruptcy and insolvency matters in this
district, Salkin and RCH were on opposite sides
in the unrelated Premium Sales case, The non-
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disclosure of the fact that they had previously
been involved in an unrelated case does not
constitute a fraud on the Court. As the court
observed in [#40] In re T oys, Inc, 331 BR.
176, 195 (Bankr. D. Del, 2005):

It is not unusual for professionals
and turnaround specialists to work
on the same cases. In faet, given
the specialized nature of the bank-
Tuptcy practice, it is inevitable,

/d at 195. The Court finds that Salkin neither
intended to, nor did, defraud the Court in con-
nection with RCH's retention,

The Movants cite cases under Fed, R.
Bankr. P. 2014 that impose rigorous disclosure
requitements upon professionals seeking reten-
tion under § 327 of the Code, and ostensibly
divest the professionals of any discretion to de-
termine the extent to which prepetition "con-
neetions,” no matter how trivial or attenuated,
must be disclosed. See, e.g., In re Jennings, 199
Fed. Appx. 845 (11th Cir, 2006), and cases
cited therein. The Court notes that the cases
cited by the Movanis involve relevant materal
nondisclosures such as failure to disclose fee
arrangements (see e.g, In re Glenn Electric
Sales, 99 B.R. 596 (D.N.1. 1988): Jn re Keller
Financial Services of Fla., Inc., 248 B.R. 859
{Bankr. M.D, Fla, 2000)), [*411 and actual
conflicts of interest (see e.g., In re Tinley Plaza
Assoc,, LP., 142 B.R. 272 (Bankr, N.D. IIL
1992); In re EWC, Inc., 138 B.R. 276 (Bankr.
W.D. Okla. 1992)). Not one of the cases cited
involve an alleged failure to disclose that an
attorney worked with another attorney or an
accountant on an unrelated case. The Court
does not find that the RCH “connection” was
relevant to, or could have had an effect upon,
Salkin's judgment in this case. Moreover the
issue is not whether there were disclosure
omissions but rather whether there were inten-
tional nondisclosures as part of a scheme to
mislead the Court. The Court finds that there

was 1o intent on Salkin's part to deceive the
Court by not disclosing that Salkin and Holtz of
RCH had previousty worked on opposite sides
in an unrelated case,

2. Who Did Salkin Represent?

Finzlly, the Lansons allege that Salkin per-
petrated a fraud upon the Court by not disclos-
ing that Salkin had a disqualifying conflict of
interest based upon Salkin's representation of
them individually, The Court notes that there is
a very fine line between representing a debtor
and representing the individual [¥42] share-
holders in a closely held corporation, When a
debtor's attorney gives advice to the principals
of the debtor as shareholders concerning pay-
ment of insider debt or pledges of personal as-
sets, the attorney could reasonably believe that
she is advising the officers of the debtor and the
otficers could reasonably believe that they were
receiving advice as individuals, However based
on the totality of the evidence as discnssed be-
low, and Salkin's correspondence with the Lan-
sons and others throughout the Chapter 11 case,
the Court finds that Salkin did not believe she
had taken on the personal representation of the

-Lansons, See e.g., Exs, 15, 45, 62, 67, 72, Q.

FF, WWW, YYY, ZZZ, AAAA, DDDD,
EEEE, FFFF GGGG, SSSS. Thes, the Court
finds that there was no intentional failure to
disclose a conflicting relationship that would
constitute frand upon the Court.

The Court notes that Salkin had no prepeti-
tion relationship with either Baron's or the Lan-
sons. The Salkin Retention Letter reflects that
Salkin was retained solely by Baron's for the
bankruptcy case, and Salkin's retainer was paid
by Baron's, Thus, Salkin's Retention Affidavit
and her Gemeral Counsel Retention Motion
were [*43] truthful. She was disinterested in
that she did not hold an interest adverse to the
estate, and she was qualified to represent
Baron's under 11 U.8.C. § 327 (a). Tn addition,
the Court finds that initially there was no con-
flict between the interests of Baron's and it
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principals; the Lansons hoped to reorganize
Baron's so that they could continue to control
and operate the company.

The Court addresses below the Lansons' al-
legations that Salkin represenied them indi-
vidually: a) by negotiating Baron's postpetition
financing which required their personal guaran-
tees; b)by preparing proofs of claims for them;
and ¢) by advancing their interests in plan ne-
gotiations with the Committee, '

a. Postpetition Financing.

At or about the time of her retention, Salkin
was advised by the Lansons and Tedesco that
postpetition financing was critical to Baron's
for its continued operations and for stocking
inventory for the upcoming Christmas season,
As requested by Baron's officers, Salkin at-
tempted to secure financing that would not re-
quire the officers' guarantees, hut she was not
successful. As they had done prepetition, the
Lansons personally guaranteed Baron's Ban-
kAtlantic [*44] postpetition financing, The
Lansons assert that Salkin represented them
individually in connection with Baron's posi-
petition financing from BankAtantic. This as-
sertion rests on several letters that identify the
Lansons as Salkin's "clients.” See Exs, 27-31.
The Court finds - and it is important to note -
that to the extent the Lansons were corporate
officers of Baron's, Salkin was required to re-
port to them and to take direction from them.
One letter signed by Salkin states: "We are
counsel to the Borrower and Norman Lanson
and Meryl Lanson, his wife (hereinafter singu-
larly or collectively referred to as the ‘Guaran-
tor’) in connection with the Loan.” See Ex, 31,
Salkin testified that this letter was drafied by
the bank's representative and presented to
Salkin for the purpose of placing it on her
firm's letterhead, see Ex. BBB, which she did.
This "opinion" letter from Salkin as borrower
Baron's counsel, was a required closing docu-
ment for Baron's postpetition loan, Salkin testi-
fied that her review of the BankAtlantic loan
documents and her execution of the opinion

letter was in furtherance of her representation
of Baron's, and that she felt it was appropriate
to comment [*45] on the terms of the loan
documents. Furthermore, there was no conflict
insofar as Baron's and the Lansons interests in
perpetuating the Debtor's ability to conduct
business were aligned, ¢ It would have been bet-
ter practice on Salkin's part to have insisted that
the Lansons have personal counsel review the
personal guarantees required of them in order
for Baron's to obtain critical postpetition fi-
nancing, However under the circumstances, the
Court finds that Salkin's presentation of per-
sonal guarantees to the Lansons did not trans-

- form the Lansons into individual clients of

Salkin. Even more importantly, the Court finds
that Salkin did not believe that by negotiating
for Baron's postpetition financing she had un-
dertaken the personal representation of the
Lansons.

6 The Court notes that no dispute ever
arose from the BankAtlantic financing,
The postpetition debt was fully satisfied,
and the Lansons were never required to
honor their guarantees,

b. Proofs of Claim

The Lansons also assert that Salkin repre-
sented [*46] them individually because her
office prepared form proofs of claim for them
to file in their individual capacities, Salkin tes-
tified that she had done this for creditors in
other cases. While this may have been a ques-
tionable act on Salkin's part, the Court finds
that Salkin did not intend to represent the Lan-
sons personally by preparing their form proofs
of claim. Salkin's failure to disclose that she
prepared these proofs of claim does not consti-
tute a fraud upon the Court.

¢. Plan Negotiations

The Court notes that Baron's bankruptcy
was a fluid situation. Although Baron's hoped
to reorganize, it became apparent sometime in
March, 1998 that Baron's would not be able to
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reorganize under a consensual plan, but would
instead have to liquidate, It was at this point
that the interests of Baron's and the interests of
the Lansons individually began to diverge. On
April 8, 1998, Committee counsel corre-
sponded with Salkin regarding the Commitfes's
plan of liquidation and its provisions to com-
pensate Norman Lanson as an officer of
Baron's to ensure his cooperation and joinder in
the plan. See Ex. 57, Salkin testified that during
plan negotiations, the Lansons claimed an in-
terest [*47] in a life insurance policy and an
automobile, both of which were assets sched-
uled by the Debtor, In addition, the Committee
questioned the ownership of an unscheduled
annuity naming Norman Lanson as the annui-
tant, Salkin testified that it was at this point that
she perceived that a conflict had atisen hetween
the estate and the Lansons. Salkin further testi-
fied that she advised the Lansons to obtain per-
sonal counsel during a March 27, 1998 office
conference. Salkin's time record entry for April
16, 1998 indicates that Salkin had a telephone
conference with Meryl Lauson in which,
among other things, she "again advised of need
to obtain personal counsel." See Ex. HHH,
Bates Stamp No. 85023854 (emphasis added).
The earliest evidence of the Lansons having
actually retained personal counsel is Ko-
pelowitz’ April 23 Letter to Committee counsel.,
Thus, the Court concludes that when the Lan-
sons' interests were no longer aligned with the
estate they were advised fo retain personal
counsel and they in fact did retain personal
counsel, first Kopelowitz and later Osherow. It
was reasonable for Salkin to assume that these
atforneys were representing the Lansons per-
sonally. The Court notes [*48] that both Ko-
pelowitz and Osherow participated in plan ne-
gotiations on the Lansons' behalf, and that Osh-
erow - not Salkin - concluded the negotiations
of the final contested issues between the Lan-
sons and the Committee, resulting in the filing
and confirmation of a consensual plan, See Exs,
EEE, FFF.

The Lansons cite correspondence by Salkin
in connection with plan negotiations in which
Salkin discussed, or even advocated, favorable
treatment or benefits for the Langons, See, e.g.,
Exs. 56, 61, The Court finds that such negotia-
tions are not unusual for Chapter 11 debtor's
counsel in their efforts to forge consensus
among multiple interest groups as to the alloca-
tion of a debtor's limited resources, 1t is com-
mon for debtor's counsel, during the course of
plan negotiations, to arguc for the plan treat-
ment of various constituencies, including eq-
nity and management.

The Lansons asserted that they still relicd
on Salkin for personal advice after they re-
tained personal counsel. Counsel] for the Lan-
sons cite The Ilorida Bar v. Beach, 675 So. 2d
106, 109 (Fla. 1996) for the proposition that the
subjective belief of the client is dispositive of
whether an attorney-client [*49] relationship
exists. However the Beach court qualified this
statement by noting that the "subjective belief
must be a reasonable one." /4. (citations omit-
ted). The Court finds that the Lansons' reliance
on Salkin for personal advise after they retained
personal counsel was not reasonable.

The Court is not without sympathy for the
Lansons who have clearly suffered losses, emo-
tionally and financially, first with the embez-
zlement and then with the bankruptey and lig-
uidation of Baron's. Salkin can be criticized for
not engaging in the type of defensive letter
writing that all attorneys should undertake
when representing a closely held debtor com-
pany. Salkin was also sloppy in not proof read-
ing the Special Counsel Retention Motions and
proposed Special Counsel Retention OQrders.
While Salkin could have done some things bet-
ter, there is absolufely no cvidence that Salkin
intended to perpetrate a fraud upon the Court. |
In summary, the Court finds that Salkin did not
perpetrate a fraud on the Court in connection
with her disclosures to the Court.

CONCLUSION
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The Court has thoroughly considered the
extensive evidentiary record in this case, in-
cluding three full days of live testimony. [*50]
The Movants' claims of fraud on the Court rest
upon an interpretation of a few erroneously
drawn documents. These documents did not
deceive the Court, nor were they drafied or
filed with such intent.

The Court expressly finds that there wag no
evidence that the Atforneys perpetrated a fraud
on this Court, or intended, at any time, to do so.
The entry of this order moots the necessity of a
further hearing on the issue of remedy, and
concludes the matter for which the case was
reopened. The Court will enter a separate order
closing this case.

ORDER

The Court, having heard the testimony of
the witnesses, having reviewed the evidence,
the record in this case, the applicable law, the
submissions of the parties, and being otherwise
fully advised in the premises, does hereby:

ORDER AND ADJUDGE that Ropald C,
Kopplow, Esq., Kopplow & Flynn, P.A., Marc
Cooper, Esq., Cooper & Wolfe, P.A,, Sonya
Salkin, Esq., and Malnik & Salkin, P.A., did
not perpetrate a fraud upon this Court in con-
nection with their applications to be retained as
special counsel or general counse! in the
Baron's bankruptcy case,
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COMES Now Mary Ahce Gwynn an rnterested party, and ﬂi'es' her Motion to Strike

and/orVa cate this Honoreble Court’s Order Grantmq Debtor's Emergency Motion to Strike |
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dated April 8 2005, and states '

1. On April 4, 2005 Mary Alice Gwynn Esq., filed a Motron to Clarify the Record on

* behalf of Florida Precision Cahpers Inc. (DE# 777) A Supplement to Motion to Clarify the

Record was also filed on April 4 2005, at DE #781. (See attached Exhrbrt

IIA“)
2.

On Apru 8 2005 this Court entered an Order Grantmq Debtor's Emergency Motron

to Strrke Merv Alice Gwvnn Esqurres Motion fo Clarrfv the Record for Fraud Upon the

Court; Motion to Preclude and Prohrbrt Mary Alice Gwynn, Esquire From Filing Pleaqus

on Behalf of Partres Represented by Other Counsel: and Denving Motrcm for tmmedrate

Referra! to the Florida Bar Without Prerudrce With Reservetron of Jurisdiction based on

Debtor’s counsel, Gary J. Rotella’s rnterpretetron of this Court's rulrng at the hearing held

before this Court on April 6, 2005, (See Order attached as Exhrblt
3.

IIB ll)

Undersigned counsel is filing this Motion to Strike and/or Vacate only the Order




Granting Debtor's Emergency Motion to Strike Marv Alice Gwvnn Esqurres Motron to

Clarify the Record for Fraud Upon the Court... portion of the. Order as bemg an mcorreot

assessment of the Court's rulmg at the Apnt 6, 2005,

4, On April 7, 2005, at 1:28 p.m., attorney Jay Farrow, Esq., from Gary J, Rotelia's
office, faxed a letter fo undersigned counsel with three (3) attached "proposed” Orders
allegedly pursuant to this Court's rulings at the hearing on April 6, 2005'. (See facsn'nlte

attached as Exhibit 'C"

The letter attached to the fax was signed by Gary Rotella, and instructed that ‘same

5.
will be submitted this afternoon for execution by Judge Hyman at 4:00 p.m." This time

constraint for revie\rving three '(3) ratner extensive orde-rs is ‘not only improper, but also
' unnecess'ary. Undersigned counsel does not believe this Court has ever issued. a- time
| frame in Wthh counsel preparmg Orders following a heanng must submit the proposed
Orders. Further, tt is standard professional courtesy to allow all counsel and interested

parties ample time to review the orders before they are presented to the Court.

6. Undersigned counsel has repeatedly requested that Gary J. Rotella allow her to

review all orders before 'be'inq proposed to the court.

7. Due to client appointments and prevrous engagements undersigned counsel was

unable to review the proposed orders within the time frame given by Mr. Rotella Funther

when she did review the orders sometime on Apnt 8”‘, she found several dtscrepancres in

her tnterpretatton of the Court's ruhng and Mr Rotella's. To avoid any unnecessary
arguments as to the true interpretation of the Court's rutrngs undersigned counsel
immediately ordered an expedited copy of the transcript of the Apnt 6 2005 heanng The

transcript was e- matted to undersigned counsel on'the afternoon of April 8, 2005, but too



late to meet Mr. Rotella’s strict deadiine for objections to his proposed Orders.

8. Attached as Exhibit “D" is the full transcript of the April 6 2005 hearing. At page 20, |

Line 25 and Page 21, Line 1, this Court rules "} am denymg-Ms. CGwynn's Motien to Clarify

the Record on the basis that it's untimely."

9. - tis imperative that the Court oiarify that Ms. Gwynn's Motion to Ciarify was denied,

and that is was not based on any type of fra'ud upon the court, as Mr. Rotella's Order
"Emergency Motron to Strike MaryAhce Gwynn

implies. Although Mr. Rotella had filed his

| Esqurre S Motron to Clarlfy the Record for Fraud Upon the Court" that was not the Motion

be!ng heard or ruled on by this Court on April 6, 2005. Mr. Rotella's Motion to Strike was

- not brought before the Court; therefore only Ms. Gwynn's Motron to Clarn'v was ruled on.

1 0. The on!y mention of the word "fraud” at the heanng was made by this Court on Page -

12, Line 25 ~ Page 13, Lines 1-2, Ms. Gwynn had made reference to the possrbrhty of a

- “bait and switch” being made wrth regard o the loose, unbound documents she and/or Mr.

Shuhi had reviewed as Exhibit "KKK", and the actual documents which were admitted into

evidence as Exhibit “KKK". The Court replied “then file a motion to set aside a judgment

_based on fraud on the court”, (See attached transcrrpt of Apnl 6, 2005 hearing.) -

11, Mr Rotella continues his attempts to “slide” rnaccurate rnformatron to thrs Court by

not letting Ms. Gwynn have ample time to review documents, and make changes or

comments before he submits them to the Court under the gLuse that they heve been

revrewed by all partles and approved

12, Undersrgned counsel would like to strike and/or vacate the portron of thrs Court's

Order dated April 8 20085, entrtled Order Granting Debtors Emergency Motion to Strike

Mary Alice Gwynn, Esquire's Motion to Clarify the Record for Fraud Upon the Court, as it




does not represent the Court's actual ruling of Aprii 6, 2005. '.

WHEREFORE, Mary Alice Gwynn, Esqu:’re‘, requests this Honorable Court to Strike

ahd/or Vacate its’ Order Granting Debior's Emergency Motio’n to Strike Mary Alice Gwynn,

Esquire's Motion to Clarify the Record for Fraud Upon the Court..., and to allow Ms. Gwynn

to submit an appropriate Order that properly cites the language as it appears in the

attached transcript. Ms, Gwynn further requests this Court to award attorneys fees and

sanctions for having to bring this Motion.
| HEREBY CERTIFY ﬂjiat a irue copy of the.foregoing has been furnished by

. facsimile and/or U.S. Mail this _Ui day of April, 2005, to all parties listéd on the Service

List.
MARY ALICE GWYNN, P.A.
805 George Bush Boulevard
Delray Beach, FL. 33483
Telephone:” (561) 330-0633
Facsimile: (561) 330-8778




Service List

+ Gary J. Rotella, Esq.

Gary J. Rotella & Associates, P.A,
New River Center, Sujte 1 850
200 East Las Olas Blvd,

Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301-2276

John L. Walsh, Esq.
Dzikowski & Walsh, P.A.
1601 Sawgrass Corporate Parkwa_y

Suite 120 )
Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33323

Heidi Feinrhan. Esq. :
Office of the U.S. Trustee
51 Southwest 1% Avenue, Suite 1204

Miami, FL 33130

Aviva L. Wernick, Esq.
Hughes Hubbard & Reed LLP .
201 South Biscayne Blvd., Suite 2500

Miami, Florida 33131

Carl Shuhi
P. 0. Box 1330 .
Boynton Beach, FL 33435

‘Gary M. Murphree

Ferrell Schultz Carter
Zumpano & Fertel, P.A.
201 South Biscayne Bivd.
34" Floor, Miami Center
Miami, FL 33131 -

Craig P. Rieders, Esq. :
Genovese Joblove & Battista, P.A.
Bank of America Tower ,

100 SE 2" Street, 36" Figor
Miami, FL 33131

Eleanor Cole .
1701 Hispana Avenue
Ft. Pierce, FL 34982



UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

Case No.: 03-32158-BKC-PGH
Chapter 7 Proceeding

JAMES F. WALKER,

Debtor,
/ .

MOTION TO CLARIFY THE RECORD

COMES NOW, Mary Alice Gwynn Esq., as an mterested party and former counsel
for Creditor, Eleanor Cote. and former counsel for Creditor, Florida Precision Calipers, tno
and files this Motion to C!anfy the record transcript of the heanng on Debtors Motion to
Drsqualn‘y Lmde J. Walden as the Chapter 7 Bankruptcy Trustee, whlte Ms. Gwynn was

representing F!orlda Precision Calipers, Inc., and further states as follows:

1. tt has come to the undersrgned s attentfon that during the oontrnued heanng on the
Debtor s Motion to Disquahfy Lrnda J. Waiden as Bankruptcy Trustee,. documents

| were accepted into evidence that were all not authenticated by Mr.-Carl Shuhi, the
Presrdent of Florida Precrsron Cehpers Ine. o
~ During the testimony of Steven Utrecht Debtor's rebuttet witness, Mr. Utrecht

brought nurneroue unauthenttceted documents to admit mto evidence, which nerther

the Trustee's counsel, nor Ms Gwynn had seen prior to the hearing. Carl Shuhi,

the Presrdent of Flonde Precision Calipers, inc., was not allowed.in. the Court during

the testrmony of Steven Utrecht, and was not given an opportunrty to take the stand

to euthentrcate each document

To the best of my reooltection of the hearing, Mr. Shuhi did not authenticate all of

the exhibits listed in Ethbit “KKK". The record seems to reflect that there were

s
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numerous documents in Exhibit "KKK”, which were admitted and seemed to be

' authenticated by me as Mr. Shuhi's counsel,

This motion is to clarify the recerd as to what documents contained in Exhibit "KKK",

were actually authenticated by Carl Shuhi,

I addition, Carl Shuhi was denied an opportunity to conduct discovery with regard

to Elame Gatsos', his previous counsel, and as a result, he was unable 1o present

the attached Exhibit “A" refutmg Elaine Gatsos’ testimony.

WHEREFORE, the undersigned couneel, who represented Florida Precision

Calipers, Inc. at the Motion to Disqdalify Trustee Linda J. Walden hearing, during the

testimony of Steven Utrecht and Elaine Gatsos requesis that the Court allow the record o

be corrected.
I HEREBY CERT!FY that l am admrtted to the Bar ofthe Unlted States Dfstnct Court

for the Southern District of F lorida, and l am in complia nce w:th the addltlonai qualifications

to pract:ce in this Court set forth in Local Rule 2090-1 (A)
- HEREBY CERTIFY that a true copy of the foregomg has been fumished by

facsnm:le and/or U.S. Maaf this \ day of April, 2005, to a” parties hsted on the Service

List
MARY ALICE GWYNN, P.A.
805 George Bush Boulevard
Delray Beach, FL- 33483
Telephone: (561) 330-0633
Facsimile: (561) 330-877

Mary Alice Gwynn ¥
Florida Bar No. 879584 o
(™~
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Gary J. Rotella, Esq
Gary J. Rotella & Associates, P.A.

New River Center, Suite 1850

200 East Las Olas Bivd,
Ft. Lauderdais, FL 33301-2276

John L. Walsh, Esq.
Dzikowski & Walsh, P.A. _
1601 Sawgrass Corporate Parkway

Suite 120
F. Lauderdale, FL 33323

Heidi Feinman, Esqg.
Office of the U.S. Truslee-

51 Southwest 1% Avenue, Suite 1204

Miami, FL 33130

Craig P. Rieders, Esq.

Peter Bellas, Esq. :
Genovese Joblove & Batilsta, P.A.

Bank of Amerlca Tower
100 SE 2" Street, 36" Floor

Miami, FL 33131

SERVIGE LIST

Lawrence U. Taube, Esq. A
301 Clematis Street, Suite 3000

West Palm Beach, FL 33401

Gary M. Murphree
Ferrell Schuliz Carter
Zumpano & Fertel, P.A.
201 South Biscayne Blvd.
34" Floor, Miami Center
Miami, FL 33131

Kevin C. Gleason, Esq.
Law Office of Kevin Gieason, P.A.
2699 Stirling Road, Suite A-201
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312



IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA
(Before a Grievance Commlittee) '

THE FLORIDA BAR,
Complainant, TFB Case No. 2001-51,148(15C)
v. .

ELAINE M. GATSOS, =
. | -

F,_esponelent.

i _ ce Re da . Pursuant toR.RegulatmgFla. Bar
3 5. l(b)(3) end 3-7.4(m),. the commitiee recommends that respondent receive an
admonishment for minor misconduct, to be adriinistered in person Respondent rmust
. appear before the grievance committee for the purpose. The grievance committee
further recomnmends that respondent be compelled to attend ethics school. :

Respondent’s firm

IL. at 0 Kl d :
represented Randy and Mary Dorfman in both rea] estate and litigation actions.
During said representation, in or about June 1999, respondent requested and received
aloan of $50,000 from her clients. Respondent assured her: clients thet they v would
be repaid as set forth in the promissory note signed by respondent and the clients.
Respondent failed, however, to inform her clients that her receipt of this loan created
2 porenual conflict of interest between thern. Reéspondent also failed to get a written
waiver of said conflict fror the chents and failed to advise them to seck independent

counsel, Finally, respondent did not disclose her full financial situation to her cHents.
"After accepting this loan, respondent failed to abide by the terms of repayment,
as set forth in the promissory note, Theréafier, in.or about December 2000, the clients

agreed to accept respondent's legal services as partial payment for the loan, This
agreement wag never reduced to a writing, Further, respondent again failed to inform

the clients that a potential conflict of interest existed, She also failed to advise them

o seék independent counsel and failed to get & written waiver from them,
By the conduct set forth above, respondent violated R. Regulating Fla. Bar 4-

1.8(a) [A Iawyer shall not enter into a busmess transaction with a client or knowing
EXHIBIT . M ﬂ(ﬂ‘? oY
: Y ,,c,, S
S ) L i C




. ——

ly acquire an ownershjp, possessory, security or other pecuniary interest adverse to
‘a client except a lien granted by law to secure a lawyer’s fee or expenses, unless the
transaction and terms on which the lawyer acquires the interest-are fair and reasonable
to the client and are fully disclosed.and transmitted in writing to the client in a-
marmer that can be reasonably understood by the client; the client is given a
reasonable opportunity to seek the advice of independent counsel in the transaction.
and the client consents in writlng thereto.]; 4-1.8(b) [A- lawyer shall not use
information relating to representation of a cliént to the disadvantage of the client
unless the client consents after consultation.]; 4-8.4(a) [A lawyer shall not violate or
attempt to violate the Rules of Professional Conduct, knowingly assist or induce
another to do 50, or do so through the acts of another.]; and 4-8.4(c) [A lawyer shall
not engage in conduct involving dishoncsty, fraud, deceit or nﬁsrepresenthﬁon.]._

© II. Summary of Additional Charges: The adchtlonal charges, if any, that will be

dismissed 1f this report is acccpted are summarized as fol]ows

The grievance comrmttec cons1dered posmble wolatmn of R Regulatmg Fla Bar 3-
'4,2; and 4-1.8()-and unanimously found no probablc cause to believe that there had .

| been violation of these rules
In arriving

at 1ts recommcndanon thc comrmttee conmdered the aggravatmg and rnitigating
circumstances recognized by the Florida Standards for Imposing Lawyer Sanctions.
The grievance- committee also considered that the Dorfman’s nephew was an
associate attorney in respondent’s law office, and that she relied upon hirn , in part
to convey some of the necessary warnings and cautions to his aunt and umle :

V.  Costs: The costs of these proceedings are assessed agamst the respondent in
the amount of seven hundred sixty-one dollars ($761.00); h.u:h are for the following:

_mmmganm.gm [Rule 3-7.60)1DMT - . § 750.00
mnggmm o
| 750.00

Ethics School
Investigator’s costs : _11.00
TOTAL : : $1,511.00



VL. Grievance Committee Vote; A quorum of not less than three members of the
.comumittee being present, one of whom must be the chair or vice chair, and another
on whom must be a lawyér member, the committee. by affirmative vote of a majority .

of the committee present voted in favor of the committee recommendation stated in
item I above, In accordance with Rule 3-7.4(g), the comtmittee reports the mumber of

committee members voting for or against this report as follows:

4
0

f[ . i

Dated this __¢ /7 _dayof __A-PL27H A =72 2000,
: y . ,

x'rééﬂffﬁ/;/;f:g_#

Larry V. Bishins, Esq., Chair
Grievance Commitiee 15¢C”

In favor of the report
Against the report

ar\m\da:ana-repoi-t of Md.wpd

-y



IN THE SUFREME-COURT OF FLORIDA
(Beforea Grievance Commlttee)

THE FLORIDA BAR,
Complainant, TFB Case No. 2001-51,148(15C)
Y. ‘

- ELAINE M. GATSOS,

- Respondent,

ADMOMSMNT FOR MINOR M]SCONDUCT

Ms. Gatsos F1ﬂeenth Judicial Circuit Gnevance Committee “C" has
. recommended that you be admon:shed for minor rmsconduct The deszgnated
rewewer on The Florida Bar's Board of Govemors concurred with the gnevance
comttee 8 recommendanon. You have notrejected_that recommendation._ o
' The sanction being administered today arises fro'm‘ your solicitation and
,a'cceptance of a loan from jfour clients; When you solicited the loan, you f'aﬂec\{ \quy
to dlsclose your frue ﬁnanmal situation. Further you failed to advxse your clients to
seek independent counsel, as there’ may have been a conﬂmt of i mterest between you,

You aIso assured your clients that they would be repaid as set forth in the

promissory note, You then failed to abide by the terms of repayment.

In or about December 2000, the chents agreed-to accept Jegal services as partial

payment for the loan. Thig agreement was never reduced to g wnnng and you again

MD.G.

W, Fﬁfe;&ea REQTED),
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failed to inform the cl icnfs that a potential conflict of interest existed.
Although the committee did not find probable cause to believe that your actions

rose to the level of a disciplinary violation, the committee nonetheless warns you that h

when entering into a business r_elationship with clients, you must do so wﬁh

extraordinary care to avoid even the appearance of impropriety, To do so, one must

be certain that ‘one’s ﬂnancia]-status is fully'idiécloscd an‘d the clicnts must understand

the possible conflicts that exzst In the instant case, you borrowcd funds failed to
properly disclose your full ﬁnancml sxtuataon faﬂed to repay the finds s agreed and
contmua]ly failed to properly inform your chcnts rcgardmg ‘possible conflicts of -

interest that could arise. This type of behawor in a business relanonshlp between

attorney and client ig blatantly unacceptable.
Having expcn’ehécd this committee’s investigation and admonishme‘nt I trust .

that you will, from this pcunt forward endeavor to conform your conduct to the.
mandatcs of the Rules Regulahng The Flonda Bar. The Florida Bar deman‘ds as
much ﬁ'om you, your chcnts are entitled fo no. Iess, and thc Iawycrs and lay people of |
this conmuttee warr that you will suffer grave professmnal congequenices should you
f‘aﬂ This ad.momshmcnt is now a part of your permanent Florida Bar record The

lawyers of Florida expect your future condu_ct to always be in compliance with your

oath and your obligations to our profession.



DONE AND ADMINISTERED this /£ J#_day of Lgan/2y 2003,

b
Larry V. Bishins, Esq., Chair, Fifieenth
Judicial Circuit Gﬁevancc Committee “C" -
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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT ‘
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA -

IN RE: CASE NO: 03-32158-BKC-PGH

JAMES F, WALKER, Chapter 7 Proceedings

Debtor. :
/

ORDER GRANTING DEBTOR, JAMES F. WALKER’ S EMERGENCY MOTION TO
STRIKE MARY ALICE GWYNN, ESQUIRE’S MOTION TO CLARIFY RECORD FOR
FRAUD UPON THE COURT: MOTION TO PRECLUDE AND PROHIBIT MARY

ESQUIRE FROM FILING PLEADINGS ON BEHALF OF PARTIES

ATICE GWYNN.
REPRESENTED BY OTHER COUNSEL: AND DENYING MOTION FOR IMMEDIATE
REFERRAL TO THE FLORIDA BAR WITHOUT PREJUDICE WITH RESERVATION

OF JURISDICTION

THIS CAUSE having come bcfor'¢ the Court on Wednesday, April 6, 2005. at 8:30 a.m.,
‘ upon Debtor, James F. Wa&er’s Emergency Motion To Strike Mary Alice ‘Gwynu’s Motion To
Clarify The Repordl For Fraudl Upon This Court; Motion To Preclude Aﬁd Prohibit Mary Alice
. Gwynn, Esquire From -Fﬂing Pleadings On Behalf Of Parties Re.p.resented By Other Counsel; And
'.Mo‘tion AFor Immediate Referral To Thus; F-Ic.yri-da Bar (“Debtor’s Motion’;) by and through h}'S
undersigned ;:ounsel; and the Couﬁ'having recognized the appearances pf counsel for the respective
parties, Gary J. Rotella and Jay L. Farrow on behalf of Debtor, James F. Walker (“Debtor") John
L. Walsh on behalf of the Chaptcr 7 Trustee, Patncm A. Dzikowski, and Mary Alice Gwynn
Esquire ( ‘Gwynn' ) appearing on behalf of herself; having heard argument from the respective
parties; havzng reviewed ;the'Court file; and bging otherwise more fully and completely advised in

the premise, this Court finds and determines as follows:

1. On April 4,2005, Debtor’s counsel was served via facsimile transmmission with Mary

Alice GWnn, Esquire’s Motion To Clarify The Record (“Gwynn’s Motion”) bearing Certificate OF

-7



Service date of April 1, 2005. On April 5 2005, Debtor’s counsel was served with Mary Alice _

" Gwynn's Suppiement To Clarify The Record (* Gwynn s Supplement”),

2. Gwynn s Motion and Gwynn s Supplement state that Gwynn is former counsel for

Creditor, Florrda Precision Cahpers,_Inc. Notwithstanding, Gwynn's Motton and Gwynn’s

Supplement make arguments for and support the interests of her former client, FPC, and its sole

drrector, Carl J. Shuhi (“Shuhi®). Imphcrﬂy, Gwynn's Motmn and Gwynn's Supplement also

support removed Chapter 7 Trustee Lmda J Walden (“Walden’ '} (as they request that this Court

reject some of the most damaging admitted ewdence presented durmg the five (5) day Trial on

Debtor’s James F. Walker’s Emergency Motion To Remove Trustee Linda J, Walden For Fraud

Upon The Court (“Removal Trial”), so as to mitigate Walden’s situation as a consequence of her

perjury and manipulation of documents before this Court;

3. Atthe April 6, 2005 hearing on Debtor’s Motlon Gwynn conceded that she does not

represent either FPC, Shuhi or Walden and, as such, has no standmg to file erther Gwynn’s Métion .

or Gwynn's Supplement and-

4, Moreover, Gwynn’s Motion and Gwynn’s Supplement lack any legal or factual basis

and therefore this Court finds that same are frivolous and subject to sanetrons under Bankruptcy

Rule 9011 and 28 U.S.C. § 1927.
T.’here'fore,’ it is hereby
ORDER AND ADJUDGED that:

1. Debtor’s Motion to strike Gwynn’s Motion is granted;

2. Gwynn is hereby precluded from filing any further pleadings on behalfof parties she

does not represent;



This Court denies, Withopt prejudice, Debtor’s Motion forreferralto The Florida Bar
but reserves jurisdiction to do so if Gwynn violates this Order; and | |
Thl:S Court reserves juris‘diction to award attorneys’ fees and costs in favor of
Debtor’s- counsel for having to respond to Gwynn's Motion and will ﬁeér and
deterrnine same on Thuréday, April 21,2005 at9:30 a.m,, Forum Bﬁildi:ig Complex
1675 Palm Beach Lakes Boulev.afd, Eighth Floor, West Palm Beach, FL 33401,

DONE AND ORDERED in Chambers in the Southern District of Florida this :’? day

‘of May, 2005.

FAUL . BV314N

HONORABLE PAUL G. HYMAN, JR.
UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY JUDGE

{Attorney Gnry J. Roéella is hereby directed to send a conformed capy of the foregoing
Order to all interested parfies, immediately upon recejpi thereof.)



Gary I, Rotella, Esquire S
Gary J. Rotella & Associates, P.A.
New River Center, Suite 1850

200 East Las Olas Boulevard

Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301

Heidi Feinman, Esquire
Office of the U.S. Trustee
51 Southwest 1% Avenue, Suite 1204

Miami, Florida 33130

Kevin C. Gleasoﬁ, Esquire

Law Office of Kevin Gleason, P.A.

2699 Stirling Road, Suite A-201.
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33312

John L. Walsh, Esquire
Dzikowski & Walsh, P.A.
- 1601 Sawgrass Cozporate Pkwy

Suite 120
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33323

Peter W. Bellas, Esquire

Genovese Joblove & Battista, P.A.
Bank of America Tower, Suite 3600

100 S.E. Second Street '
- Miami, Florida 33131

SERVICE LIST

Francis L. Carter, Esquire
Gary M. Murphree, Esquire

~ Ferrell Schuitz Carter Zumpano & Ferte], P.A.
, 34" Floor

201 South Biscayne Boulevard
Miami, Florida 33131-4332

James F. Walker
2145 Northwest 17" Street
Delray Beach, Florida 33445

Lawrence U. .Taube, Esquire
301 Clematis Street -

Suite 3000 . . _
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401

Mary Alice Gwynn, Esquire’
805 George Bush Bivd. _
Delray Beach, Florida 33483

Aviva L. Wemnick, Esquire
Hughes Hubbard & Reed, LLP

201 South Biscayne Blvd, Suite 2500

Miami, Florida 33131
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LAW OFFICES

GARY J. ROTELLA & ASSOCIATES, P.A.

NEW RIVER CENTER
 SUITE 1850
200 EAST LAS OLAS BOULEVARD
FORT LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA 33301-2276

GARY J. ROTELL A S TELEPHONE . DADE
'ROBERTP. KELLY . (954) 7632500 (305) 757-8054
JAY L.FARROW - TELEFAYX

|  (954) 467-2231

TELECOPIER TRANSMITTAL LETTER

Daz‘e of Transmittal_April 7, 2005
PLEASE DELIVER THE ACCOMPANYING TELECOPY TRANSMITTAL To-
NAME: Mary ;411'ce Gwynn, .E‘squife |
FAXNUMBER:  1-561-330.477 | |
SENDER'S NAME Jay L. Farrow, Esquire for Gary J. Rotella, Esquire
Total Number of Pages j(!nclua'z‘ng I%ansmiztd{ Lerrér):' 13, |

COMMENTS: Please see attached,

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE: The information contained in this facsimile message is legally
privileged and confidential Information intended only Jor the use of the individual or entity named
above. Ifthe reader of this message is noi the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any
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FORTLAUDERDALR, FLORIDA 33301.22786
TELEPHONI (054 ¥03-9500

TELEFAX (954 £07.9231
MIAMYSO5! 7678054

April 7, 2005

- Mary 4, Gwynn, Esquire Vi4d FACSIMILE: 1-561-330-8778
Mary Alice Gwynn, P.A.

805 George Bush Boulevard -

Delray Beach, Florida 33483

RE:  James F. Walker, Debtor S
United Stares Bankrupicy Cours, Southern District of Florida-

Case Number: 03-3215 8-BEC-PGH

Dear Ms. Gwynn:

Enclosed please find undervthz_'s"caver the following Orders emanating from yesterdays héarx’ng
before the Honorable Paul G. Hyman, Jr. which comport in all respects with Judge Hyman's
rulings:

1. Order Granti_néDebTor, James F. Walker’s E mergency Motion To Strike Mary Alice ‘

Gwnn's Motion To Clarify The Record For Fraud Upon This Court; Motion To
Freclude And Prohibit Mary Alice Gwynn, Esquire From Filing Pleadings On Behaly
Of Parties Represen ted By Other Counsel; And Motion For Immediare Referral To

The Florida Bar;

2. Order Idenying Mary Alice Gwynn's Morion To Strike Or Dismiss Debror, James
Waller s Motion For Sanctions Against Mary Alice Gwyrin Pursuant 1o Bankruptey
Rule 9011 For Fajlure To Abide By Rule ] Of The Federal Rules of Civil

Procedure; ‘

3. Order denying Mary Alice Gwynn s Motioni To Amend, Correct Or Withdraw The
Court's Order Granting The Debtor ‘s Motion For Sanctions Fursuant To Rule 9011,
Dated. June 15, 2004, Pursuant To Rule 60 Qf The Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.
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Mary dlice Gwynn, Esquire
April 7, 2005 ‘
Page 2

man at 4:00 p-m. Ifyou have any

. Samewill be submitted this afternoon for execution by Judge Hy,
comments regarding same, contact Mr. Farrow o/ my office by telephone as the “writing campaign ™

Is over and things cannor happen fast enough:

Additionally, I would like an answer from you regarding our correspondence af” yesterday
specifically relating 16 your decision to withdraw your Motion For Protective Order and have your

Deposition concluded as sapie relates 1o the various pending contested marters seheduled for

hearingon April 21, 2005. Withour recetving your answer by this afternoon, this *'Christian " offer

is withdrawn as I believe that You are hell-bent on wasting time and maney.

Very/ruly YO&FS
v‘ .P

ﬁ' Gary J. Bopdlla
GIRYlY

Enclosure

Loto Offes
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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA -

IN RI: CASE NO: 03-32158-BKC-PGH

JAMES F. WALKER, Chapter 7 Proceedings

Debror. '
. /

ORDER GRANTING DEBTOR, JAMES F. WALKER’ S EMERGENCY MOTION TO
’S MOTION TO CLARIFY RECORD FOR

STRIKE MARY ALICE G ESQU
FRAUD UPON THE COURT; MOTION TO PRE UDE AND PROHIBIT MARY
ALICE GWYNN. BESOUIRE FROM FILIN PLEADINGS ON BEHALF OF PARTIE
EL: AND DENYING MOTION FOR IMMEDIATE

REPRESENTED BY OTHER CO
REFERRAL TO THE FLORIDA RAR WITHOUT PREJUDICE WITH RESERVATION
- OF JURISDICTTON . B

THIS CAUSE havmg come before the Court on Wednesday, April 6, 2005 at 8:30 A.M.,
upon-Debtor, James F. Walker’s Emergency Motion To Strike Mary Ahce Gwynn's Motion To
Clarify The Record For Fraud Upon This Court; Motion To Préclude And Proh1b1t Mary Ahcc

G\-wnn Esquzre Frorn I‘ﬂlng Pleadings On Behalf Of Parties Representt d By Other Counsel; And

Motion For Immediate Referral To The Florida Bar (“Debtor’s Motion™) by and through his

unders:gned counsel, and the Court hav:mg recogmzed the appearances.of counsel for therespective
. parties, Gary J, Rotclla and Jay L. Farrow on behalf of Debtar, .Tamcs F Walker (“chtoi'”), John
L. Walsh on behaIf of the Chaprer 7 Tmstee Patncxa A. DZIkOWSkI and Mary Ahce Gwynn

Esquire (“Gwynn™) appearing on behalf of hcrself having heard argumcnt from the respective

parties; having reviewed the Court file; and bemg otherwise more fuIIy and completely adwscd in

the premise, this Court finds and determines as follows:

1. On April 4, 2003 Debtor s counsel was served via facsimile wansmission with Mary

Alice Gwynn Esqmre s Motion To Clanfy The Record (“Gvrynn’s Moti on”) bearing Certificate Of
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Service date of April 1; 2005. On April 5, 2005, Debtor’s counsel was served with Mary Alice

Gwynn's Supplement To Clarify Thé Record ("Gwynn’s Supplement™);.

@ . Gwynn’s Motic.)n and Gwynn's Supplement state that Gwynn is “former counsel for
Creditor Fl.on'da Precision éal-ipers, Inc.” Notwithstanding, Gwynn'’s Motien and Gwynn's
Supplement make arguments for and support tile interests of her former client, FPC, and its sole
director, Carl J. Shuﬁj (‘;Shuhi"). Implicé‘ﬂy, Gwynn’s Motion and Gwynn’s Supplement also
support removed Chapter 7 Trustee I;inda J. Walden (“Walden”™) (as they request that this Court
reject some of the most daﬁaging admitted evidence presented duﬁﬁg the five (5) day Trial on
Debror’s James F. Walker’s Emergency Motion To Remove Trustee Linda J. Wa£dch For Fraud -
Upon The Court (“Removal Trial™), so as 10 mitigate Walder;’s sit;uatioﬁ asa consequenbe of her |

perjury and mampulanon of documcnts beforc this Court;

3. Atthe Apnl 6, 2005 hearing on Debtor’s Motion, Gwynn LOﬂCEdﬂd that she doesner

represent either FPC, Shuhi- or Walden and, as such, ha_s no standing to file either Gwynn’s Motion

or Gwynn’s Supplement; and

4, Moreover, Gwynn’s Motion and Gwynn's Supplement lack any legal or factual basis .

and theréfore this Court finds that same are frivolous and subject to sanctions under Bankniptcy

Rule 9011 and 28 US.C. §1927.
Therefore, i1 is hereby -
ORDER AND ADJUDGED that:
L. Debtor’s Moﬁon to strike Gwynn's Motion is granted;

2. Gwynnishereby precluded from filing any further pleadings on behalf of parties she

does not represent;
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This Court denies, withour prejudic.e, Debtor's Mdtion for referral o The Florida Bar
‘but reserves jurisdiction to do so if Gwynn violates this Order; and |

This Court reserves jurisdicn'én to award attorneys’ fees and costs in favor of
Débtor's counse] for having to respénd to Gwynn's Moti‘on and will hear and
determine same on Thursday, April 21, 2065 at 9:30 am., Forum Building Complex

1675 Palm Beach Lakes Boulevard, Eighth Floor, West Palm Beach, FL 33401,

day

DONE AND ORDERED in Chambers in the Southern District of Florida this

of May, 2005.

HONORABLE PAUL G. HYMAN, JR.
UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY JUDGE

(Attorney Gary J. Rotella is hereby directed to send a conformed capy of the foregoing
Order 10 all interested partios, immediately upon receipt thereof’)



Gary J. Rotella, Esquire -
Gary J. Rotella & Associates, P.A.
New River Center, Suite 1850

200 East Las Olas Boulevard

Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301

Heidi Feinman, Esquire
Office of the U.S. Trustee

51 Southwest 1" Avenue, Suite 1204 .

Miami, Florida 33130

Kevin C. Gleason, Esquire

Law Office of Kevin Gleason, P.A.
2699 Stirling Road, Suite A-201
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33312

John L. Walsh, Esquire
Dzikowski & Walsh, P.A.

1601 Sawgrass Corporate Pkwy
Suite 120

Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33323

Peter W. Bellas, Esqﬁiré
Genovese Joblove & Battista, P.A,

Bank of America Tower, Suite 3600
100 S.E. Second Stwreer
Miami, F_]o_rida 33131

Francis L. Carter, Esquire

SERVICE LIST

Gary M. Murphree, Esquire
Ferrell Schuliz Carter Zumpano & Fertel, P.A.
201 South Biscayne Boulevard, 34 Floor

Miami, Florida 33131-4332

Jarmes F, Walker
2145 Northwest 17% Street
Delray Beach, Florida 33445

Lawrence U. Taube,. Esquire

301 Clematis Srreet
Suite 3000 .
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401

Mé.r_',r Alice Gwynn, Esquire
805 George Bush Blvd.
Delray Beach, Florida 33483

Aviva L, Wemnick, Esquire

Hughes Hubbard & Reed, LLP

201 Scuth Biscayne Blvd, Suite 2500
Miami, Florida 33131 '
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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

IN RE: CASE NO: 03-32158-BKC-PGH

JAMES F. WALKEE Chapter 7 I'roceedings

Debtor.
/

ORDER DENYING MARY ALICE GWYNN’S MOTION TO STRIKE OR DISMISS
DEBTOR, JAMES F. WALKER’S MOTION FOR SANCTTONS AGAINST MARY
ALICE GWYNN PURSUANT TO BANKRUPTCY RULFE 9011 FOR FAILURE.TO

ABIDE BY RULE 11 OF THE FEDERAL RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE

THIS CAUSE having come before the Couﬁ on Wednesday, Apri] 6, 2005 at 8:30 AM.,
upon Mary Alice GWyrm’._s Mo!ioﬁ To Strike Or Di;miss'Debt;)r, J’arﬁes' F. Walker’s Motion Fer
Sanctions Against Mary Alice Gwynn Pu.rsuanl_t to Bankguptcy Rule 90.1 L 1';‘or Failure To Abide By .
Rule 11 Of The Federal Rules of Civil Procedure (“Gwynn’s Motion™), and thrlzl Court h,aﬁng
recognized the appearances of counse! for the respectivg‘ parties, Gary J. Rotella and Jay L. Farow
on béhaif of Debtor, James F, Walker, Johin L. Wa;'[sh on behalfof the Chaprer 7 Trustee, Patricia
A, Drikowski, and Mary Alice Gwynn, Esquire appearing on behalf of herself, having heard

argument from the respective parties; having reviewed the Court ﬁle; and beiz'_lg_othcnvise more ﬁ;lly

and compicte]y advised in the premise, it is hereby

ORDER AND ADYUDGED that:

1. . Gwynn's Motion lacks any facwal or legal merit and is therefore denied with

prejudice;

This Court reserves jurisdiction 1o award attomeys’ fees and costs in favor of

b2

Debtor’s counsel far having o respond to Gwynn's Motion on Thursday, April 21,

2005 at 9:30 a.m.
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DONE AND ORDERED in Chambers in the Southern District of Florida this day

of May, 2005,

. HONORABLE PAUL G, FVMAN, JE.
. UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY JUDGE

(Attorney Gary J., Rotelln is hercbh

¥ directed to send a conformed copy.of the foregoing
Order to all interested

parties, Immediately upon receipt thereofl)



Gary J. Rotella, Esquire .

Gary 1. Rotella & Associates, P.A.
New River Center, Suite 1850
200 East Las Olas Boulevard

Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301

Heidi Feinman, Esquire
Office of the U.S. Trustee
SI Southwest 1* Avenue, Suite 1204
Miami, Florida 33130

Kevin C. Gleason, Bsquire

Law Office of Kevin Gleason, P.A.
- 2699 Stirling Road, Suite A-201
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33312"

John L. Walsh, Esquire
Dzilowski & Walsh, P.A.

1601 Sawgrass Corporate Pkwy
Suite 120 - '
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33323

Peter W, Bellas, Esquire
(Genovese Joblove & Battista, P.A.

Bank of America Tower, Suite 3600
100 S.E. Second Streer
Miami, Florida 33131

Francis L. Carter, Esquire
Gary M. Murphree, Esquire
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 SERVICE LIST

Ferrell Schuliz Carter Zumpano & Fertel,P.A, -
201 South Biscayne Boulevard, 34" Floor
Miami, FIorida 33131-4332

James F, Walker - ,
2145 Northwest 17" Street
Delray Beach, Florida 33445

Lawrence U. Taube, Esquire
301 Clematis Srreet:

Suite 3000
West Palm Beach, Flerida 33401

Mary Alice Gwym, Esquire
805 George Bush Blvd,
Delray Beach, Florida 33483

Aviva L. Wernick, Esquire

Hughes Fubbard & Reed, LLP

201 South Biscayne Blvd, Suite 2500
Miarmi, Florida 33131
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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

IN RE: CASE NO: 03-32158-BKC-PGH

JAMES F. WALKER, Chapter 7 Proceedings

Debtor.
/

ORDER DENYING MARY. ALICE GWYNN’S MOTION TO AMEND. CORRECT OR
WITHDRAW THE COURT’S ORDER GRANTING THE DEBTOR’S MOTION FOR

SANCTIONS PURSUANT TO RULE 9011 AND RULE 60
OF THE I I‘EDERAL RULES OF CIVII, PBDCEDURE

THIS CAUSE having.come before the Court on chnesday, April 6,‘2005 at 8:30 AM.,,

upon Mary Alice Gwynn's Motion T Amend, Correct Or Withdraw The Court’s Order Granting

The Debtor’s Motion For Sanctions Pursnant ToRule 9011, Datéd June 15, 2004, Pursuant To Rule

60 Of Thc Federal Rules of Civil Proccdure (“Gwynn s Motion™), and the Court hawng recognized

~ the appearances of counsel for the respective parties, Gary J. Rotella and Jay L. Farrow on behalf
of Debror, 'James F. Wa_lker, John L. Walsh on behalf of the Chaprer 7 Trustee, Patricia A.
Dzikowski, aud Mary Alice Gwynn, Esquire appearing on behalf of herself; having heard argument

from the respective parties; having reviewed the Court file; and being atherwise more fully and

completely advised in the premuse, it is hereby

ORDER AND ADJUDGED that:

1. Gwynn’s Motion lacks any facual or legal mert and is therefore denied with

prejudice;

2. This Court reserves jurisdiction to award aftorneys’ fees and costs in favor of
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Debtor's counsel for having to respond to Gwynn’s Motion on Thursday, April 21, .

2005 at 9:30 a.m.

HONORABLE PAUL G. HYMAN, JR.
. UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY JUDGE

(Attorney Gary J. Retelln is hereby directed to send a conformed copy of the foregoing
Order 1o all interested parties, immediately upon recelpt thereot)



* Heidi Feinman, Esquire
Office of the U.S. Trustee
51 Southwest 1* Avenue, Suite 1204

Miami, Florida 33 130

Kevin C, Gleason, Esquire

Law Office of Kevin Gleason, P.A.
2699 Stirling Road, Suite A-20]
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33312

John L. Wa]sh, Esquire
Dzikowski & Walsh, P.A.
1601 Sawgrass Corporate Plkwy

Suite 120 :
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33323

Peter W. Bellas, Esquire ' :
Genovese Joblove & Battista, P.A.

Bank of America Tower, Suite 3600

100 S.E‘.‘Second Street .
Miami, Florida 33131
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SERVICE LIST

Francis L. Carter, Esquire

Gary M. Murphree, Esquire ’
Ferrell Schultz Carter Zumpano & Fertel, P.A.

201 South Biscayné Boulevard, 34" Floor
Miami, Florida 33131-4332

James F, Walker
2145 Northwest 17" Street
Delray Beach, Florida 33445

Lawzence U, Taube, Esquire
301 Clematis Street

Suite 3000
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401

Mary Alice Gwynn, Esquire:

" 805 George Bush Blivd,

Delray Beach, Florida 33483 -

Aviva L. Wemick, Esquire

Hughes Hubbard & Reed, LLP .
201 South Biscayne Blvd, Suite 2500
Miami, Florida 33131
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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COQURT
'SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

Judge Paul G. Hyman, Jr.

In Re:

Case No. 03-32158-BKC-DPGH

JAMES F. WALKER,

Debtor.

MOTION BY LAWRENCE TAUBE TO WITHDRAW AS COUNSEL FOR

FLORIDA PRECISION, CARL SHUHI AND ELEANOR .COLE
EMERGENCY MOTION BY DEBTOR JAMES F. WALKER FOR DEFAULT

JUDGMENT AGAINST ELEANOR C. COLE AS SANCTIONS FOR
REFUSAL TQO OBEY SUBPOENA AND APPEAR AND TESTIFY AT
DEPOSITION AND AMENDED MOTION TO STRIKE CLAIM.

WALKER FOR DEFAULT JUDGMENT

EMERGENCY MOTION BY JAMES F.
AGAINST FLORIDA PRECISION CALIPERS, INC. AS SANCTIONS
FOR REFUSAL TO OBEY SUBPOENA, APPEAR AND TESTIFY AT

DEPOSITION AND AMENDED MOTION TO STRIKE CLAIM.
April 6, 2005

The above entitled cause’ came on for hearlng before the

HONORABLE PAUL G. HYMAN, JR. one of. the Judges in the
in and for.the SOUTHERN

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURTr )

DISTRICT OF FLORIDA, at 1675 Forum Place, Bth Floor,

West Palm Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida, on April s,
and the

2005, commencing on or about 8:30 a.m.,
following proceedings were had:

Reported by: Jacquelyn Ann Jones, Court Reporter
QUELLETTE & MAULDIN COURT REPORTERS
(305) 358-8875 ‘

5)

ey " 10
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APPEARANCES:

GARY J. ROTELLA & ASSOCIATES, P.A,
By: GARY J. ROTELLA, ESQUIRE, and
JAY LEWIS FARROW, ESQUIRE
On behalf of the Debtor James F. Walker

LAW OFFICE OF LAWRENCE TAUBE
LAWRENCE TAUBE, ESQUIRE

By :
On behalf of Florlda Precision Callpers,

Carol ‘Shuhi, Eleanor Cole

MARY ALICE GWYNN, P.A.
By: MARY ALICE- GWYNN, ESQUIRE

On behalf of Mary Alice Gwynn
and former counsel for Florida Precision Calipers

DZIKOWSKI & WALSH

By: JOHEN L. WALSH, ESQUIRE . o
i i, Trustee

On behalf of Patricia Dzikowski,

Also Present:

Carol Shuhi

EXHIBTITS

Debtdr's Exhibits A through 0 recelved

Page 22
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THE COURT: Ms. Gwynn, I guess I don't need to

call vyou.
MS. GWYNN: Tbat's_correct, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Why don't I take appearances.on the

Walker case.
MR. ROTELLA: Your Honor, Gary Rotella and Jay

Farrow on behalf of the debtor, James F. Walker.

MR. TAUBE: Larry.Taube on behalf of breditors,

Florida Precision Calipers, Carl SHuhi, qnd Eleanor

Cole.
MS. GWYNN: Mary Alice Gwynn on behalf of

herself as an interested party, and as former counsel

for Florida Precision Calipers.
MR. WALSH: John Walsh on behalf of Patricia

Dzikowski, the Chapter 7 trustee.

THE COURT: I want to remind everyone we only
have an hour this morning because Judge Friedman has a
trial starting at 9:30, and we're going to take some

things, if we -can't get to other matters we'll set- them

at another point in time. I suggest we take Mr. Taube's

motion to withdraw first.
MS. GWYNN: Your Honor, Mr. Shuhi is outsgide.
He's parking a car. Is it all right for him to come in?

THE COURT: When he gets here, yes. Do you

want to wait until Mr. Shuhi is here, Mr. Taube? If
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"and Mr. Taube's withdrawal of Ms. Cole.

he's going to come in, I'll give him ten minutes and
let's take a'couple of the other matters that are

relatively short that don't really relate to you.

There's a --
MR. ROTELLA: Can we take the Cole matter, .Your

Honor?
THE COURT: Yes, we can take the Cole matter,
I'11 deal with

that first. Good point. Ms. Gwynn, Ms. Cole is not

there?
MS. GWYNN: That's correct,

MR. TAUBE: Your Honor, I have a motion to

withdraw as counsel for Eleanor Cole. First let me put

on the record the notice issues, bECaﬁse I know those
were‘itemsiof concern. After'the-hearing:pn ?riday;
pursuénp_to instrucEions, I faxed a copy of the motion
to withdraw, as well as§ the two ﬁending motions that Mr.
Rotella has filed, and ﬁafticularly the motion to strike
Ms. Cole's pleadings. I can represenﬁ to the Court that
I'did attempt to.fax to thé number that I have, which I
know is a gboa nﬁmber, for probably about a three hour
span'and was unéble to get through;-was not able to call
on that line either. At approximate;y 1:dO I personaliy
stuffed the envelope, wherein I mailed a cbpy of ‘my

motion, and I personally dropped it in the mailbox so
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that there would be no question as to whether or not it

was mailed out. So I can represent to the Court that

the notic¢e of hearing, my motion, and the motion that ig
pending ;egarding the motion té strike were ‘all mailed |
out on April 1st at approximately 1:Bd or so.

I'm seeking to withdraw because in this
particular case, as a result of correspondence I've had
back and forth, it h&s become apparent to me that I have
developed irrédonéilable differences between my blient
and myseltf regarding.the objectives, the strategy,. and
the tactics of the representation, and that it.is
impossible for me to represent this client in a manner
that is consiétent with my leigatiéns under the rules
of proféssionél conduct,_aﬁd in particulaf to refrain
from engaging in_act;vities that I consider to be
repﬁgnant and imprudent. I have done my best, Judge, in
order td avoid placing myéeif and my client in this
poéition,'buf I just think -- I feel that professionally

-- that I'm.just simpiy unable to represent this client

in this matter any fufther.
THE COURT: Any objection?
MR. ROTELLA: No, Your Honor. While Mr. Taube
is here, and I expect he's going to get up and walk éut
once he withdraws, I would only like him to confirﬁ his

advice to me that the reason he is withdrawing is
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because his-client, Mr. .Shuhi, has asked him to. file
pleadings --

THE COURT: We're'dealing with Ms. Cole right

now.
(Mr. Shuhi. enters room.)
MR. ROTELLA: Okavy.

_ THE COURT: Mr. Shuhi just_walkéd in the
couftroom, and we'll deal with him next, but this deals

only with Ms. Cole righﬁ now.,

MR. ROTELLA: Yes, Yoﬁr Honor. Fine, Your

Honor.
THE COURT: Hearing none, -1'11l grant that

motioﬁi _
MR.'TAUBE: Your Hoﬁor,Asecond, with reépéct to
Mr. Shuhi, just_bfiefly with réspect -- T presume he '
must have gotten the notice because he's here, 5ut I'11
represent again that I served a copy -- attempted to

serve a copy of the motion and the notice of hearing by

fax on Friday, I made several attempts over about a

three hour span, was unable fo 'do S0, - the fax number
rang busy, and I furnished the Court with a copy of the
transmittal sheet, they should be in the court file, I

also mailed copies of the motion to withdraw notice of

hearing, as well as the motion to strike the claim of

Mr. Shuhi in the mail. I personally stuffed the
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-wish it hadn't come to this,

‘Mr. Shuhi.

-here, Your  Honor, Mr.

envelopes, I personally put them in the mailbox

Once again, I would ba51cally say this w1thout

revealing any client confidences, I feel that - I, as an

attorney have a duty to represent my clients zealously

within the bounds of the law On the other hand, I also

have a duty to refrain from objectives, tactics and

strategy that I consider to be imprudent or repugnant .

In this partlcular case I can represent that as a result

of correspondence between myself and the client,

1nclud1ng certified letters, I feel that I have

deﬁeloped irreconcilable differences regarding the

objectives, the strategy, the tactics of the

repregsentation, and that T feel that it is impossible
for me to conduct this case in a manner that I feel ig

consistent with my obllgatlons to represent this cllent

under the rules of professional conduct and - -therefore,
I have no choice but to withdraw. ' I'd like to say, I

I do not want myself or my

client to be placed in this position, but I feel under
the rules I have no choice.
THE COURT: Any objection? Mr. Rotella, I -

think you were going to make some sort of comment about

MR. ROTELLA: I was only, while Mr. Taube was.

Taube has indicated to me
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us.

"with that.

3

yesterday in,reviewihg the recently filed pleadings of
Mrs Gwynp, or Ms. Gwynn, that these are the very |
repugnant and inappropriate pleadihgs that Mr, Shuhi hag

asked him to fi;e and he refused to fiie..

THE COURT: Any objection, Mr. Shuhi, now that

you're here, for the withdrawal?-

MR. SHUHI: I object to the withdrawal, yes,

.based on what he states, yes,

THE COURT: Tell me why.
MR. SHUHI: I believe Mr. Taube simply wasn'et

prepared for this. He has an incredible fear.of being
sanctioned and'having bar complaints placed agéinst him.
Therg-has been sﬁeady communication between the two of
Hé's a éingle practitioner and he canndt be

overwhelmed with paper; and that's a fact, and I agree

THE COURT: That's frankly, not- grounds, in my

opinion, to disallow his motion to withdraw, and

frénkly, any attorney should be concerned about
potential sanctions and compliance with Rule 11, and the

fact that if you don't you do subject yourself to

sanctions. I don't think that's an inapprepriate fear,

So I'll grant your motion as to that case.

MR. TAUBE: Your Honor, I have one order that

provides for. both, and I'm short oné envel0pe, which is
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to myself, otherwise --
THE COURT: Okay. My law clerk can conform

them and you can serve them and certainly make a cCopy

for yourself.
MR. TAUBE: Your Honor, may I be excused?

{Mr. Taube exits the room.)

THE COURT: Yes, sir. Let me take a couple of

other quick matters before we go to the_default matter.

First of all, the motion for protective order,
does anyone have a copy of the transcript of the
deposition, because without it I frankly, can't rule on

it. |
MS. GWYNN: I ordered it, Your Honor, it's in

the process of being transcribed.

THE COURT: Okay. When you get a copy of the

You say one thing, Mzx.

transcript I'11 deal with it.
Rotella says something else. You say you're being

truthful and honest and forthcoming, he‘says you're not
He says he needs to ask additional questions because
yoﬁ're not being forthcoming. I don't know that until I
See'thg traﬁscrip;:- §o ohce youvgeﬁ the transcript you
can renotice it. That's all i can‘réally do. - |

MR. ROTELLA: I think you probably need to see
the transcript, and I-think if it doesn't satisfy you

that Mzx. Walsh, on behalf of his client, the trustee,
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sat through the entire deposition, and I believe the

trustee would say that Ms. Gwynn was evasive, didn't

answer the questions, ran us over the mountainside and
through the valleys, and that's only this last sitting,

Judge. But if you want to address it all in one fell

swoop --
THE COURT: I don't know how I can deal with it

without seeing the tfanscript.
MR. ROTELLA: Yes, Your Honor.

MS. GWYNN: I think the transcript will speak

for itseif that Mr. Rotella went into areas that were

Eotally inappropriate, like my sex life and things that
have'nothing,to do.ﬁith thié bankruptcy. |

| | THE COURT: I will take a look at the
traﬁ$cript. That's all ;'Ean do. Now I can set it --
set that motion -- when are you going to.get.the' |

transcript?
MS. GWYNN: The court reporter said it would be

- the middle to the end of next week.

THE COURT: I can set it then for the 18th here
at 9:30, If it's easier I can set it for -- if you can.
éet me the transcript, get a copy up here, is it easier
if I set it at 10:30, because of traffic, or 9:307? .I'm

going to be here beginning at 9:30 anyway.

MR, ROTELLA; 10:30.
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THE COURT: So set it at 10:30. Renotice it

for hearing at 10:30 on the 18th. Get me the transcript

beforehand and I'll look through it. Okay.

MR. ROTELLA: And at that time the Court will

congider the other averments in the response to the

motion for protéctive order as they relate to it?

THE COURT Untll I see the transcript I really

can't.
The other qulck matter in my oplnlon, is this

motion to clarify. Frankly, I don‘t understand what it

=y .
is you're seeking, Ms. Gwynn, in that the record is what

documents that are in evidence,

it'is, are in ev1dence

If I did not properly admit them into ev1dence " then the

Appellate Court -- you have a remedy w1th the Appellate

Court, and they can elther reverse me or remand it back
Having said that my recollectlon is that all

triple Ks that is, are in ev1dence, they

went in evidence without objectlon, with a stlpulatlon

of authent1c1ty from you on behalf of your clients.

‘recollectlon. But having said that,

That's my distinct
it is, and I'm not going to change

the record is what

the record at this point after rullng on the matter.
Likewise on'the Bar complaint the record is
what it is. No one asked me to defer rullng to accept

additional evidence at the time or within ten . -days of me
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That 's a final order. So I'm

rendering my decision.

going to deny your motlon, because frankly, I can't do

anything about the record today.
MS. GWYNN: “But Your Honor, just so I can

preserve a record. for appeal i1f necessary in the future

there was some. confusion about that Exhibit KKK 1

don't know if the Court recalls, but number one, I was

out of the courtroom more than I was in because T was a

witness and Mr. Rotella invoked the rule. So as a

I only got bits -and pieces of what was going on

result,
"But going

as far as the testimony of various witnesses

back to KKK, Mr. Utrecht showed up that morning with a

stack of loose documents

THE COURT: I ﬁnderstand-?oﬁr allegations,

ma'am, but it's- done.
I'm just saying, thgre,wés

'MS. GWYNN: Well,
-- when I went back and

some confusion because we didn't

spéke with my client, Mr. Shuhi, that whole KKK was not
there were loose leaf -- so

I'm just saying --

. THE COURT: No question about it.

MS. GWYNN: All right. There was some

confusion, either a bait and switch or something that

needed -- _
THE COURT: Then file a motion to set aside a
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judgment based on fraud on the court, if that's your
. ) . . B e o ) .
allegation. But I'm telling vyou, I can't do anything on

the record today.
MR. FARROW: Your Honor, if I may, we actually

filed an emergency motion that we filed, I believe
yYesterday, and we got -- I spoke to Chfistina,
consistent with her instructions, . I faxed ouﬁ & notice
of hearing and I contactedlali parties on the sérvice
liét; therefore it is noticed for toaay,,it‘s our
emérgehcy motion to strikg Mary Alice Gwynn, Esquire's

motion to clarify the record for fraud upon the court,

-motions to preclude and prohibit Mary Alice Gwynn from

filing pleédings on behalf of parties represented by

other counsel, and motion—for immediate referral to the

Florida Bar..
And the thrust of our motion, Your Honor is,

number one, Me. Gwynn didn't have any standing

whatscever to file these motions --

THE COURT: And frankly, I was going to make:
that point. Ms. Gwynn, I don't understand your
standing. The parties there were the trustee, the

debtor, and that's all who was presenting evidence. I'm

not guite sure what your standing was.

MS. GWYNN: My standing at the hearing for

bringing these up was I was representing Mr. Shuhi's
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corporation at that hearing. .Tﬁere were certain
documents that-weré exchaﬁged that were put into
evidence that while“I was there that Mr. Shuhi either
didn't authenticate or somehoﬁ they were put into this

composite Exhibit KKK, which we did not authenticate

or --
It is the

THE COURT: That's not your issue.
She should have objected --
her counsel should have objected to the authenticity if
there was ény question, but as I said, I heard you-come'
in and say, we have no objection.
MS. GWYNN: That was to certain --
MR. FARROW: Your Honor, may I ﬁake -- you're

absolutely right and --
MS. GWYNN: That was -- I was trying to clarify

for the Court that. it was --
THE COURT: Let her finish. -
MS. GYWNN: -- it wasn't the entire KKK. There

was a stack of loose documeﬁts,-and suddenly théy were

bound and they're put into evidence, and I just want to

clarify, because it didn't‘éome_to my --

'THE COURT: What is it you want clarified?
That they went into evidence? The record is.what it is,
If the record.reflects, which I believe'it'doesj 1 don't

have the record in front of me, that all of thenm went
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they all went into evidence.

- 1f I --

into evidence,

MR. FARROW: Your Honor,

'MS. GWYNN: I just filed my motion to preserwve

if necessary, and T

will be able to answer Mr. Farrow's allegations in his

motion.
MR. FARROW:. Your Honor,'just for the record,

you did inguire as to any objections as to authenticity,

this is page 7 of our emergency motlon and yoﬁ say,

let's get -- first of all, there are no ev1dent1ary

objections as to the authenticity of these documents.

Ms. Gwynn answers, “No, Your Honor."

There's a more seriocus problem going on here

and this is something that's been happening throughout

Gwynn writes whatever she

wants in pleadings without regard to the truth

whatsoever. And this is something that we have been

deallng w1th almost on a ‘daily basis for the last two
" And I've spend the better part -- excuse me, the

years
almost 11 hours

entire day a couple of days ago,

draftlng this proceedlng in order to preserve the

record. And it's somethlng that, as I was saying
that is-a consistent theme heré, We have tried

to bring this matter to the Bar and to other courts, but
" Because

this needs to stop, and it needs to stop now.
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excuse me, motion to clarify, hey

her original motion --
clarify, which attaches a medica]

supplementallmotion to

report for Carl Shuhi, and which she says will rebut Mg,

Gatsos' testimony that she was physically assaulted

outside the courthouse. Now she doesn't represent Mr.

Shuhi right now. What business is it of hers to start
filing these types of motions. And we're asking as a

as a serious sanction, for immediate

punitive sanction,
referral to the Florida Bar for the continuing filing of

frivolous pleadings.

' One thing I would also Say; is that she also
filed recently in another matter, bankruptqy matter, in
the Jody Hussey and Alex Hussey caée?,an emergency
Rotella, Mr. Rotella's

Deborah Menotte, and

law firm, the‘Chapter 7 trustee,

the debtor's counsel all in one swoop
THE COURT: On that case, take it up with Judge

Friedman.. That's his case, I'm not g01ng to do anythlng

in his case. If she's d01ng something 1mproper in

take it up with him,

MR. FARROW: Yes, Your Honor. . The only reason

why we decided is just showing a consistent pattern
But going back to our motion, which we painstakingly

demonstrate that the allegations and averments made in
and not only_that,
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there was no standing to bring the motion in the first

place. And as I say, we request sanctions for having ¢g

draft this motion, and again, an immediate referral to

the Florida Bar.

MS. GWYNN: Your Honor, in response there's --

record I needed to preserve

for my client for appeal. I believe that I had
standing --
THE COURT: Stop. Let me just ask a question.

What right do you have to appeal the order removing the

MS. GWYNN: I'm not -- I'm not apﬁealing that

If there's any appellate -- I .don't know what's

order.
I don'‘t know

going to happen with Mr. Shuhi's claim.

what's going to happen to Mr. Shuhi as a result of

this --
THE COURT: But you don't represent him, do

YOLI 7
MS. GWYNN: Excuse me?

THE COURT: Do you represent him?

MS. GWYNN: Not at this moment, but I did

during the motion ‘to disqualify, which I believe certain

things are going to be happening down the road, and I

want to preserve whatever appellate rights he may have

that would result in, I know thHere's a motion to strike
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his claim, I know there was some other issues regardlng

his credibility, and at that time I was representlng Mr

Shuhi,-and I feel it is my duty to preserve any
appellate issues he may have,for down the rocad. I don't

know what's coming down the road. And that's why I

filed that. 1In my good faith filing I believe that a1}

of these thlngs needed to be brought up that number One,

Ms. Gatsos, she was 'a surprise

as I stated in my motion,

witness. No one was really given an opportunity'to

depose her, no.one knew she was coming back, Your Honor
She showed up one day and no one was given notice that
she was coming back. " She testif;ed.on the stand that
Mr. Shuhi injured her arm .-- |

THE- COURT: That's not the issue.

MS. GWYNN- Well, I'm just preserving the

recbrd, and I would llke my motions and whatever is

to preserve the record and

THE COURT: The issue is whether you are

the issues are whether you're filing

filing -- to me,
'Mr;

Shuhi, you're here, and you re not requlred to answer

Gwynn represent you in Florida

this question, does Ms.
Gwynn is

Calipers in the various recent matters that Ms

filing on your behalf?
MR. SHUHI: At that time --
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THE- COURT: And you do not have.to answer if

there's some reason, attorney-client, whatever.

1'11 choose not to answer then.
I

MR. SHUHI:

MS. GWYNN: I would state for the record,

filed them because I was representing him at that time

and this would be retroactive, and request the Court to
accept them as retroactively when I represented him at

the time to preserve any appellate matters he may have

that emanate f£rom them.
:MR. FARROW: If I could have just one last

comment, Your Honor. It's not jﬁst'Mr. Shuhi that fhese
pleadings are béing filed on behalf of, it's also the
fdrmér‘and femoved Chapﬁer 7 trustee, Liﬁdé Walden.u If
you look at some of the averments, sﬁécifically relating
to'Elainé Gatsos, I believe this is in her responsé to
our motion or supplemental motion to clarify, she states
that if the Bar coﬁplaint was introducéd into evidence

that there was some way to demonstrate that it was Ms.

Gatsos' associate who attended the initial meeting with

Mr. Shuhi, and not Linda Walden.
And to make one more comment, what she was

just saying about the fact that no one knew-about Elaine

Gatsos, Elaine Gatsos spent most of the -day, actually

all day on November 12th outside the court, and she

She actually came back, there was an
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issue on the 12th, and she came back on the 17th to

testify. So when Ms. Gwynn makes a representation to

this Court that nobody knew about Gatsos or had an

opportunity to reduest her examination, that's not

accurate.

MS. GWYNN: Your Honor, if you recall, Ms.

Gatsos would not answer any questions outside the hall
unt11 she knew what the rules of bankruptcy were and

what her rlghts were, and I belleve she asked the Court

for --
THE COURT: This is my ruling. Number one, I'm

going to deny without.prejudice the request to refer

this matter to tHe Bar.

Number two, Ms. Gwynn, you're instructed'not

to file any.pleadings for anyone who you don't currently

represent. Mr. Shuhi or -- either individually or in

on behalf of Florida Calipers has a rlght to file

his --
Gwynn is flllng

somethlng with thiS'court, or any ceurt that is

unauthorlzed and in which 'she does not represent him.

As far as monetary sanctlons, I will reserve
on that. If you'd like to set that portion for the 21st
when we have all the other sanctions motions, do it

MR. FARROW: That will be fine, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I'm denying Ms. Gwynn's motion to
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reservatlon-ln the order.
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clarify the record on the basis that it's untimely

MR, FARROW: We'll prepare the order, Your
Honor. |

THE COﬁRT& Let's deal with the motion for
Anyone here on behalf of Ms.

default against Ms. Cole.

that request strike all

Cole? Then I will grant
Cole in this bankruptcy

all claims of Ms.

proceeding as a sanction for her refusal to appear at

MR.. ROTELLA: Judge, if it please the Court, so

that the record is very clear, and so there's no slack

we prepared an amended exhibit register

arid it principally, Judge, includes the.subpoenas, the
returns of service, the notice of'setting t he |
depositions, the letters back and forth w;th Taube,
which makes it all extremely tlght -

THE COURT: Fine. And I -- do you have any

addltlonal time other than was given to me at the prlor

hear:.ng'p

MR. ROTELLA: We do Your Honor. It hasn't
We would llke -- you 11 notlce that

been assembled
there are no expenses included there. We'd like a

To be perfectly frank with

you, we've attempted to prepare the orders, but we've

been swamped with these other inceoming pleadings like
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scuds from-Ms. Gwynn.

THE COURT: Okay. So as to the amount of the

renotlce it for the 21st, bur

sanctions, 1if you'd like,

I will strike all pleadings of Ms. Cole and reserve on

the amount of the monetary sahctions.

MR. ROTELLA: I think what we'd like to do,

Just S0 we can move along, is we'll use these numbers in

Exhibits A, B, and C, with a reservation for another

because I don't know that we can even be ready by

There's just been so much going on,
And I have reviewed

they

the 21st
. THE COURT: That's fine.

A, B, and C, the amount of the fees are reasonable

were necessary, and were properly 1ncurred in defense of

the action in the prosecutlon of your posztlons rand I

Wlll award the fees requested thereln as to Ms, Cdle in
addition to striking her claims. ' '

MR. ROTELLA: Thank yéu, Your Honor.
THE COURT And I've received Exhlblts A

through © 1n support of your motion.
(Exhibits A through O received.)

MR. ROTELLA: Thank you, Your Honor.
.MS, GWYNN : Your Honor, can I request for the

Rotella supply thosé exhibits? I never

fecord_that Mx.
received them. I just want to have them for my records.

.THE COURT: You can have -~ give her a copy.
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MR. ROTELLA: We'll do that, Your Honor. She

dctually planned to come to ﬁy office this Friday to

receive whatever it is that I intend to use on the 21 gt
But I'm happy to

attempt to give them to her before then.

THE COURT: Okay. Let's go to Mr. Shuhi. Mzr,
you want to sit up here, or not? It's up to vou,
since you're the topic of the

You seem

Shuhi,
to be up at the table,

last matter. Don't feel like you have to,

hesitant.
Go ahead, Mr. Rotella.
MR. ROTELLA: The remaining matter, Your Honor,

is8 very. much identical to the Cole matter, and that'

Debtor James F. Walker's emergency motion for default

judgment against Florida Precision Calipers, Inc. and

sanctions for refusal to obey subpoena and appear and
testify at deposition, and amended motion to strike
A number of the exhibits that we have given you

claim.
thls mornlng that are appended to the amended exhlblt

register pertaln to this matter, and our positlon is

very much identical.

THE COURT: Mr. Shuhi, first let's talk about

why did you not appear -at your deposition, why are you

refusing to appear?
MR. SHUHI: That's not quite accurate. I was
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noticed -- I was asked by Mr. Taube to appear on Good.

Friday, and that was just a few days before. I

explained to -him I take Good Friday and Easter weekend
and for me it's a religious holiday. It's in writing

too. Also i-volunteered myself for any other day. That

was open., And as far as a subpoena, it's never been
mentioned to me by Mr. Taube or anyboedy else that that

I was doing it voluntarily.

THE COURT: You've never beén served with a
subpoena is What you're saying? | | |

MR. SQUHI: The last time I was ser?ed by &
sﬁbpogna was in 2004. I have never beén served since.

I have nothing. I'm not aware that that's what I was

appearing'for. I don't know.
- MR. ROTELLA: That is the subpoena. The

deposition was properly noticed.. The file is replete

with correspondence back and forth betﬁeen Messrs Taube,

Rotella and Farrow relative to the setting. Mr. Taube

confirmed the appearance, or that Mr. Shuhi would

appear.  Then out of the blue, I believe on March léth,

we got his advice that Mr. Shuhi refused to appear and

refused to testify, as did Ms. Colé, whom I believe is

governed.in some regards by whatever Mr. Shuhi does.

There was no motion for protective order, nothing has

changed. We went through this in the fall time
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consistent with the effort to remove the trustee The

production was scare. Nothing has changed.

THE COURT: Now, I know you'ra leaVLng town.

How long are you leaving town for? You're 1eav1ng town

today, from what I understand from the last hearing
I'll be back on

MR. ROTELLA: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I'm going to give you, Mr. Shuhi,

one last time. to appear for your deposition
MR. SHUHI: That's fine.
THE COURT: When did you want him next week?

MR. ROTELLA: I'1ll have to look, Your Honor

I'm. just perplexed as to why that happens here, Judge

You'twve glven everyone --
THE COURT: To me it's clear that there was

a -- 1s irreconcilable differences between Mr. Taube and

Mr. Shuhi. There's no question there's communication -

problems between the'two. .
"MR. ROTELLA: Then ‘there should have been a

motion for protectlve order.

THE COURT: . No questlon about it.
and I'm going to

But having

Shuhi is pro se now,
Do you want to get on the
-- I

said that, Mr

give hlm one last chance

cell phone or this phone and call your office and

think it's preferable to have a date certaln, because if
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he does not appear I will then strike all of his

pléadings. And Mr. Shuhi,'I'm‘going to tell you
Straight up, that's it. and you have to answer all of

the questions, subject to any priﬁilege You may have,

and. this is your last chance.

MR. SHUHI: That's fine.
THE COURT: I'll make him show up today if

you --.
MR. ROTELLA: Can't happen today, Judge.

10:00 on Wednesday, Your Honor?
THE COURT: At your offices.

MR. ROTELLA: At my offices.
THE COﬁRT:'Which is -- make sure yoﬁ give Mr.
Shuhi -- , '
MR. ROTELLA: He's been there.

MR .- SHUHI: May I ask a question?

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

MR. SHUHI: What is the scope of the deposition

going to be about, since my Subpoenas last time were for

MR. ROTELLA: Tt's wide opén, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Well, it's not wide open.

“'MR. ROTELLA: Anything do with this matter,
with his claims, and as he says that,rJudge --
THE COURT: You should deal with the hearings
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that are set for the 21st. That's the only contested

matters I'm aware of that. are pending ‘as to Mr. Shuhi

‘MR. ROTELLA: That's fine,

deal with that.
THE COURT: Which means the motions for

Your Honor., I can

sanctions against you, Mr, Shuhi, the basis for the

motions for sanctions, and all matters that are

reasonably calculated to lead to discoveérable evidence

concerning the motions for sanctions.

MR. SHUHI: So any evidence at all that

concerns that motion.
MR. ROTELLA: Judge, then what will be your

dispoesition of my_moticn for default?

THE COURT: 'I'm deferring that until I see if

he shows up. If-yod would like to renotice it for the

l18th at 10:30,

fine.

or 10:00, whatever, 10:30 I guess that's

If he shows up and doesn't answer, you know,

completely, then you can -- we'll revisit it.

MR. ROTELLA: Yes, Your Honor.
THE COURT: If he doesn't give you appropriate

aAnswers. Get

a transcript.

That's all I can'do.

MR. ROTELLA: Yes, Judge.
THE COURT: Ms. Gwynn, vyou loock 1like you have a

question on your mind.

MS.

GWYNN: Yes, I do.

Just while we're
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conducting scheduling here, with regards to the debtor'g
motion for sanctions against myself pursuant to Rule 11
that s scheduled for the 21st, I have filed yesterday

with the court a motion to amend andicorrect the Courct'g

order granting the debtor's motion for sanétions
pursuant te Rule 11.
THE COURT: You want to hear it today?
MR. ROTELLA: Can we do it now, Jay?
MR. FARROW: I'd be happy to.
MR. ROTELLA: We're ready, Ju&ge(

THE COURT: We've got a half hour. Let’$ take

care of it. Mr. Shuhi, you're welcome to stay or you're

welcome to leave,
MR. SHUHI: I'll stay.
MS. GWYNN: I wasn't prepared, and I only

brought one copy.
THE COURT: Let me -look at it real guick. I'm
fairly familiar with what's happened ‘in this case.

MS. GWYNN: That's the motion to strike the
underlying order as being inconsistent with the Court's
oral ruling 6n'April 28th, 2004 where tﬁe.CQurt denied
or the debtor's motion to shorten the 21 déy
period for Rule 11 sanctions. |

THE COURT: Just let me read the order, Does

anyone happen to have the transcript, the pertinent
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transcript?

MR. ROTELLA: Mr. Farrow does, Your Honor .

MS. GWYNN: I attached the part where the Court

ruled, denied the motion to --

THE COURT: Mr. Farrow.

excuse me, Ms. Gwynn,

MR. FARROW: Your Honor,

for the record, I'm handing up an excerpt ruling for the

ruling on the motion to disqualify for April 28th, and T

have a copy for you as well, Ms. Gwynn.

THE COURT: Just everyone be quiet and give me

five minutes to read it.
MS.,GWYNN: Your Honor, I would like -- because
I've read that excerpt, it's not correct. We need to

have the full tranépript, because Mr.. Gleason had a

motion for sanctions which the Court did award at that

hearing, so you need a complete transcript of the 28th,
MR. FARROW: Your Honor, actually let me just.

hand these up all at the same time. This is for various

motions. I believe this is the transcript from our

motion to shorten the 21 day period on April the .28th.

I have a copy for Ms. Gwynn. And I also am going to
hand up to the Court the hearing excerpt ruling ffom_the

May 28th transcript. I have a copy for Ms. Gwynn'aS'

well, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you.
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Debtor James F. Walker's motion for sanctions against

30

MS. GWYNN: Your Honor, I would regquest that

this not be heard today because I'm just reviewing thisg

’

now. I don't know what their. argument is going to be

transcrlpt -
THE COURT: Ma'am, you filed:the motion.
MS. GWYNN: Okay.

THE COURT: And I'd like to get. this stuff done
before the 21st so that peoplefknow:what the status is

I've read the transcript of my ruling on the

motion to disqualify.

MR. FARROW: Your Honor, 1 alsq have the order

denying motion to shorten 21 day notice period for

filing a motion for sanctions pursuant to Bankruptcy

Rule 9011. 1It's court paper 350. . I'd like to hand it

up. to the Court, and I have a copy for Ms. Gwynn.

Specifically paragraph number 2 authoriaed the debtor to

submit a motion for sanctions, as we did on May 18th’
pursuant to any applicable statutes or rules.  Pursuant
to sald order on May 18th debtor James F. Walker filed

Esquire and Creditor Eleanor C. Cole

Mary Alice Gwynun,
pursuant to'Bankruptcy Rule 9011, and that's court paper

and same was heard on May the 28th.

360,
and I believe I've

1f Your Honor would recall,

handed up that excerpt ruling from the 28th of May,
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which also was heard =a renewed motion to disqualify our

law firm at the same time, and this Court clearly on " the

record entitled debtor's counsel to Rule 11 sanctions

as well as denied Ms. Gwynn's renewed motion to

disqualify the law firm of Gary J. Rotella who

represented the debtor.

THE COURT: Okay. It would be helpful if I

could read the'ﬁranscripts.
Why did you hand me up the Aprll 28th rullng,

since -- I'nm trylng to figure out. why they would impact

'on whether the ocrder of June 12th was properly entered?

MS. GWYNN Your Honor --
I asked Mr. Farrow‘this.
~the April 28th hearlng

THE COURT:
MR. FARROW: Your Honor,

con81sted of an emergency motlon to disqualify our law

flrm by supplement thereto and cur motion to shorten

time, because we received her motion and-we reallzed

that this was going'tq be heard on an emergency basis
but we properly sent her a 9011 letter -- o

THE CQURT: No. The April 28th hearing dealt

with the'motion Lo shorten time,. and on May 12th I

Your Honor,

MR. FARROW: You denied the motion,
MS. GWYNN: You denied the motion.
MR. ROTELLA: You denied it as béing moot,
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'motlon to shorten ‘time,
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Judge, because she decided to go forward
THE COURT: Okay. Denied without prejudice.
MR. FARROW: Correct.

THE COURT: Okay.
Mﬁ. FARROW: And then we filed a motion

pursuant to 9011 on May the_lsth which was heard on the

"28th of May --

THE COURT: May the 28th.

MR. FARROW: Yes, Your Honor.
THE COURT Okay. So Aﬁril 2éth is just
background

'MR. FARROW:

a portlon of the transcript was at least attached to. her

Correct, Your Honor, but it was -.

motlons that were filed with the court yesterday,

therefore I thought it needed to be addressed

MS. GWYNN: Can I --'and just to clarify for

the April 28th ruling denylng the debtor's

the 21 day perlod, in the May

12th order ailso denying, the Court gave Mr. Rotella and

the debtor an opportunlty to come back with any other .
He never

authority or any other rule for sanctions
and I

did. His present motion is still under Rule 11

had submitted --

THE COURT: That's not the issue. The issue ig

whether-the_June'IZth order conforms with my oral ruling
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order was entered,

for medlcal reasons, and Ms.

- by Art Neiwirth.
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on May 28th. That's why I was trying to figure out why
the April 28th hearing had anythiﬁg to do with it.

MS. GWYNN: Well, do you know why, 1s because

they impact together. mr. Rotella, in his motion for
sanctions groups both the original motion. to disquali fy

And if the 21 day

Period was not met for the first one because the Court

denied the motion to shorten time, it would also apply .

to the May 28th. 8o if you read.over'-~

THE COURT: That's not --
If I was wrong, .

the issue is, what

did I say on May 28th. I was wrong, and

- You should have dealt with it theén.

MS. GWYNN: Tt didn't come up. Your Honor,

B - | |
‘ : i It's

THE COURT: Can I read the transcript?

real simple.

MS. GWYNN: Okay.

THE COURT: Okay. Now Ms. Gwynn.

MS. GWYNN: Your Honor, how that June 12th

right shortly after the May 28th

hearing I withdrew as counsel of record for Eleanor Cole
Cole was then represented

Apparently Mr. Neiwirth was not
really -- was not apprlsed of what. transplred on Aprll

28th, and the Court's denial of the debtor's motlon to
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time,

from Mr. Rotella to Ms.
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and when tHe order was

and in the order itself it

submitted by Mr. Rotella,

contained language that the Court finds that debtor's

counsel propérly served and notified Creditor Cole's

Counsel, Gwynn, of its intention to seek =sanctions
pursuant to Role 911, and that Gwynn refused - - that

language that he included in that order is inconsistent

with the April 28th oral ruling of the Court and

subsequently to the May 12th order entered in the court

not -find that Mr. Rotella had

because the Court dld
It says just the

day notice,

properly given the 21
Court denied his motion to shorten

opposite, because the .

As a result this order was entered and I

didn't have -- T’ dldn't review it and I dldn't flnd out

about . 1t untll reviewing the- record for the upcoming

motion for sanctions agalnst me. And after doing quite
a blt of research I submitted a memorandum of law and
the case law is very clear, it's anm absolute,'that if g

person is not given the 21 day period afforded under the

rule it's an absolute bar to seeking sanctions under

that rule.
MR. FARROW: Your Honor, if I may. Two points.

I have here a June 8th, 2004 correspondence

Number one,
Gwynn, which I do have a cCopy



10

11

1z

13
14
"15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

35

for you, but at least paragraph.number 3 shoots by -- we

presented these orders to Ms. Gwynn prior to the filing

of -- then with this Court.
Number two is, Your Honor what does Ms. Gwynn

eéxpect to get around Rule 9011 by circumventing the 21

day period. And what I mean by that is that she filed

an emergency motion that had --:in which this Court

determined that she had absolutely no standing
whatsoever to bring. We hear the emergency motion, I

think within seven-days_of the filing. We properly sent

a -letter and the motion to Her over the weekend in the

end of April prior to this hearing going forward. She

went forward with her motion. And now she séys, Your

Honor, I can't be sanctioned for filing a frivolous
pleading pursuant to Bankruptcy Rule 9011 because they. -

didn't comply with the 21 day period.
YouriHQnor, Ms. Gwynn's citation to Bankruptcy

Rule 9011 is a little confused, because that rule

provides that. -- proﬁides for a 21 day notice period,

but it also provides that this Court has the discretion

to reduce that 21 days in its discretion.

THE COURT: To me the issue is whether the

5rder dated June 12th properly reflected my oral ruling

on May 28th. Reading the transcript, the order clearly

does. It reflects my oral ruling. I indicate that I
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_adversary action,

actions ruled against Carol Ann.
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find she had no standing, she cannot get around Rule 137
by filing a renewed motion that restates the same.

grounds as the original motion, and then a couple of

which 'I have found to be meritless Since

e€Xtra grounds,
I hereby award

adversary proceeding.
meaning I award the entitlement to

but not as to the amournt. That's what

you may wish

I. dismissed the
attorneys fees,

attorneys fees,
the oral ruling says. vYou may not like it,
to have it changed, but that's what the fuling says, and

if you had a problem w1th it you should have filed a

motion to reconsider w1th1n ten days. You didn't. Ang
as far as this Court ig concerned, that's the end of the

story, because it does accurately reflect my oral

ruling. '
GWYNN: Then for the record, Your Honor, 1

Gleason was

MS .

just want to pPut on the record that Mr.
there, the adVersary You mentioned just now, the
the motlon_that you were referfing to

was Mr. éleasbn's Rule 11 sanctions where the adversary
That's the confu51on

.Gleason she.

THE COURT: I do not call Mr

This refers to a female. It didn't_refer to you by

name, but you were clearly the person who I was talking

about who was subject to this motion for sanctions

‘MS. GWYNN: That was for Mr. Gleason's motion
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me, Eleanor Cole did not have standing to

that she,
., and Mr. Gleason

bring an adversary against Carol Ann

also filed a Rule 11 sanctions against Ms. Cole and

myself and that order was dealing with Mr. Gleason's

motion on behalf of Carol Ann.

THE "COURT: Then you should have filed a motion

to reconsider if I ran amuck.
MR. FARROW: Your Honor, for the record --

MS. GWYNN: Your Honor, at that point I

withdrew. It was Mr. Neiwirth.

~ THE COURT: Well,
FARROW: Just for the benefit of the
Number

I've denied your motion.

MR.

record, because thisg is a|serioué situation.

one, as you read through the transcript you can clearly
tell 1t's dealing with the motion for dlsquallflcatlon

That's number one.
Number two, these motions that she filed are

a continuing systematic problem that we have been

again,
She had absolutely no ba31s to

GWynn.

having with Ms.
and I would make an ore tenus motion

file these moetions,

for fees for having to prepare last. night -
I will reserve on that and rule on

THE COURT:

that on the 2ist, all part and paréel of it.

ROTELLA: We'll prepare that order, Your

MR .

Honoxr.



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18

19

20
21
22

23

25

- gets better,

38

THE COURT: Thank you,

MR. ROTELLA: Thank you, Judge, Hope your day

THE COURT: I hope your trip goes well and your
mother --

MR. ROTELLA: Thank You very much, Judge. T

appreciate your thinking of her.

(The pProceedings were concluded. )
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Acertify that I was authorized to and did

39
CERTIFICATE

The State of.Florida

County of Palm Beach

I, JACQUELYN ANN' JONES, Court Reporter,

stenographically report the foregoing hearing; and that

the "transcript is a true record of my stenographlc

notes. I further certlfy that I am not a relatlve,
employee, attorney or counsel of any of the partles, nor
am I a relative or employee of any of the parties:
attorney or counsel connected with the action, nor-am‘I

flnanc1ally interested ‘in the actlon

In witness whereof I have hereunto set my hangd

and seal this 8th day of April 8, 2005.
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f

JACQ LYN ANN JONES

Commission No. DD 382130

Expires Feb 18, 2009

- JACQUELYH JONES
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-UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
- SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

Judge Paul G. Hyman, Jr.

In Re: . |
' . Case No. 03—32158*BKC—PGH

JAMES F. WALKER,

MOTION BY ELEANOR COLE FOR REHEARING
MOTION BY CARL SHUHI, FLORIDA PRECISION CALIPERS, INC.

FOR REHEARING

' AMENDED MOTION FOR ATTORNEYS FEES AND COSTS AGAINST

ELEANOR C.- COLE
MOTION BY MARY A. GWYNN TO STRIKE AND/OR VACATE ORDER

GRANTING DEBTOR 'S EMERGENCY MOTION TO STRIKE MARY ALICE
GWYNN, ESQUIRE'S MOTION TO CLARIFY RECORD FOR FRAUD UPON.

THE COURT o | -

-May 20,:2005

The above entitled cause came on for hearing before the
HONORABLE PAUL G. HYMAN, JR. one of the Judges in the
"UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT, in and for the SOUTHERN
DISTRICT OF FLORIDA, at 1675 Palm Beach Lakes Boulevard
~West Palm Beach Palm Beach County, Florida, on May 20,

2005 ‘commencing on or about 11:00 a.m., and the.

follow1ng proceedlngs were had

Reported by Jacquelyn Ann Jones, Court Reporter
OUELLETTE & MAULDIN COURT REPORTERS
(305) 358-8875

OUELLETT

Yumberpite, 520
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| On behalf of Ms. Cole,

Page 2

APPEARANCES:_
GARY J. ROTELLA & ASSOCIATES, P.A.

By: GARY J. ROTELLA, ESQUIRE, and
JAY L. FARROW, ESQUIRE

'On behalf of the Debtor

MARY ALICE GWYNN, P.A.

-By: MARY ALICE GWYNN, ESQUIRE

On behalf of herself as interested party

LAW OFFICE OF LAWRENCE'U. TAUBE
By: LAWRENCE U. TAUBE, ESQUIRE

'Former counsel for Shuhi .and Cole

BRUCE I. KRAVITZ, P.A.
By: BRUCE I. KRAVITZ, ESQUIRE
Mr. Shuhi and

Florida Precision Callpers

DZIKOWSKI & WALSH
By: JOHN WALSH, .ESQUIRE
On behalf of Trustee Patr1c1a Dzikowski.

LAW OFFICE OF KEVIN C. GLEASON
By: KEVIN C. GLEASON, ESQUIRE

On behalf of Carol Ann Walker

(Appearing telephonlcally)

I NDEZX
WITNESS: MARY ALICE GWYNN :
DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. ROTELLA 45
: E X H I B I TS
Debtor's Exhlblts A-- H, K, O received 43 .
‘Debtor's Exhibit J received - - 58
63

Debtor's Exhibit N received

OUELLETTE & MAULDIN COURT REPORTERS
~ 305-358-8BB75
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‘Rotella seems to have troubleAwith orders.

Page 17

we switch places so that the witness. is facing her.

THE COURT: 1I've got no objection. I don't

care who sits on what side.
MR. WALSH: Judge, may I ingquire of the Court

before Mr. Kravitz leaves, the notice of hearing outside

and that I have on the docket reflécts that there's an

amended motion for attorney fees and costs against

Ms. Cole, that I guess has been filed by Mr. Rotella. Is

that one of the issues on appeal7
MR. ROTELLA: Yes, it is.

MR. WALSH: Okay..

MS.”  GWYNN: Your Hohor; I guess we're going to .

go by the --

THE COURT: If you object to the order that Mr.

Roteila has suggésted, let me khpw.'_I have no preference

one way or the other, Ms. Gwynn.

MS. GWYNN: Thank you, Your Honor. Then.IFll;

it's Mary Alice
Gwynﬁ”s motion to strike and/or-vacate‘order granting the
debtor's emergenty motion to strike Mary Alice GWyﬁn 5
motion to clarify the record for fraud upon the Court

Your Honor, here we are once again. Mr.

The

transcript says one thing, but the orders that'actually

come out and are signed say something different. If the

OQUELLETTE & MAULDIN COURT REPORTERS
305-358-8875
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Court will recall, I came -- there was a hearing on April

8 ~-- actually, on April 4, 2005 I filed a motion to

clarify the record on behalf of Florida Precision

Calipers.

THE COURT: Can I just Suggest, let's turn to
the order that yoﬁ think is improper, that‘does.not
refléect the ruling, is that ¥your Exhibit B?

MS. GWYNN: Exhibit B. This i5 what --

TﬁE COURT: Tell me what within thislorder you

think does not -- is . not properly reflective of the

order.

MS: GWYNN::”Okay.] The order says,'order_

granting Debtor James F. Walker's emergency motion to

strike Mary Alice Gwynn, Esquire's motion to clarify the

record for fraud upon.the'cou;t. That's giving the
iﬁférence~that I committed fraud upon the court. There

wés-no_mention of fraud-upon the court; nor did the . Court

say I committed fraud upon the court. So what I did,

Your Honor, and I'll make this real sucéinct, because the

argument. —-- - ‘
THE COURT: Is the only issue you take is the

title of the order?
~MS. GWYNN: There are other issues, Your Honor.

That particular motion was not even heard. If you would

refer to paragraph, or page 11 of the transcript, which-

OUELLETTE & MAULDIN COURT REPORTERS
305-358-8875
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is attached and tabbed,'Your-Honor, for your coﬁvenience,
bage 11, 1like the second parégraph, wé were.waiting and
the Court says, "Until I see —- well, the othér quick
matter, in m? opinion{ is theimotion to clarify." I'm
just reading what the Court said. "?rankly, I don't
understand what it is you're seeking, Ms. Gwynn, in.that
the record is what it is, documents that are in evidence
are in evidence; S50 we're hearing the motion to clarify"
THE COURT: My queétion was, the title of their
motion -- really I.guess the real guestion is, What was

the title of-yoUr'motion?
MS. GWYNN: Motion to clarify the record. And

that's what was heard. On page 11 the Court says --~
THE COURT: Where is a copy of your motion?
MS. GWYNN: To clarify the record? TIt's

attached as Exhibit A.
That order itself infers that there was some

fraud upon the court. Okay.
THE COURT: Next point.
- MS. GWYNN: All right.  The next point, the only

mention of fraud at all in Ehat transcript is when the
Court -- when I was referring to the bait and switch of
Ekhibit KKK, the Court states, "Then file a motion to éet

aside the judgment based on fraud on thé court, if that's

OUELLETTE & MAULDIN COURT REPORTERS
305-358-8875
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Page 20

your allegation, but I'm telling you, I caﬁ't do anything

on the record today.” That's the only mention of

Afraud.

THE COURT: Let's go line by line on -~- I
agree, we'll change the title of the order.
Now, what else within the order ifself is not

reflective of the order, the record, rather?

MS, GWYNN: Ba51cally the only thing that

'should be sald -—- the only --

THE COURT: Let's look at. the order and tell me

what else is. not properly reflected in the record.

MS. GWYNN: The order should -= number one, . the ‘

crder should be titled, order denylng-Mary Alice Gwynn, .

Esqulre s motion to clarify the record. Number one, the

THE COURT: Well, did it come before the court .

on Mr. Walker's emergency motion to strike your mofion to

clarify?
Your Honor, that was not heard.

MS. GWYNN: No,
If you look at the'transcript, that was not heard. The

only mention of Mr. Walker's order, or that particular

emergency motion, .in their motion they. requested.

immediate referral to the Florida Bar.

THE COURT: Mr. Farrow, do you have a copy of

your motion?

OUELLETTE & MAULDIN COURT REPORTERS
305-358-8875
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MR. FARROW: I don't believe I have a copy of.

our motion, but the -- I know that Ehé moﬁion requested

' the'immediate referral to the Florida ~-

. THE COURT: That's nof the issue. Let's go.

back to the title. And I may have spoken too quickly,

because it's on -- it's order granting debtor James F.
Walker's emergency motion, so my question is, what is the

proper title of your motion? Was it James F. Walker's

emergency motion to strike Mary Alice Gwynn, Esquire's

motion to clarify record fé: fraud upon the court, is

that the proper title?
MR. ROTELLA: Yes.
MS. GWYNN: That was the title, but that's not

what the Court ruled on, and that's not what was heard.

The Court only ;uled-on my motion tO'clarify the redord,

and on page 20, Your'Honor,_word for word, the Court --
THE COURT: Let me lobk at the trénscript;
MS. GWYNN: Paée 20, Your Honor. I.put a tab
on it.- _ |
THE COURT: I understand. But I neéd to look

at the transcript. The first part of the trénscript

deals with Mr. Taube's withdrawal. .

All right, Ms. Gwynn, do you dispute that the

title of their motion was the motion to stfike -

MS. GWYNN: I dispute that wholeheartedly.

OUELLETTE & MAULDIN COURT REPORTERS
305-358-8875 ‘
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' THE COURT: -- for fraud on the court. Do you

dispute the title of their motion, not what was heard,

but the title of their motion?

MS. GWYNN: I dispute the title of their

And I dispute -~

motion, yes.
Does anyone have a copy of this?

THE COURT:

MS. GWYNN: That was the title of their motion.

‘Your Honor, excusé me, that was of the

title of their motion,'but that's not what .was heard.

And that's not what was ruled on. Page 11 states exactly
what we were diecussing, the motion to clarify. This is

what Mr. Rotella does, he does. a bait and sw1tch all the

“time w1th his' orders

MR. ROTELLA: Neéedless to say, Judge, I take

some strenuous objection to that, under all of the

circumstanoee especially.
What -else do you have a problem

THE COURT:
with in the order, whlle I'm going through it, orher than
the title?
_ MS. GWYNN: All that introdoctory verbiage,
because this is not what -- this cause was not<before the

Court, this was not -heard, that whole introductory

paragraph.

ParagraphIZ; that's certainly not in the

record -- in the. transcript.

OUELLETTE & MAULDIN COURT REPORTERS
' -~ 305-358-8875
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"Number two, Ms. Gwynn, .

. . . Page 23_’

Paragraph 3 is inaccurate At the Aprll the

6th, 2005 hearlng I did admit that I was not representing

Florlda Prec1510n Calipers at that tlme, but I did state

I was representlng Florlda Precision Calipers at the time

of the removal hearlng, which was the -- the purpose of

the motion to clarify was that KKK Exhibit. So I was

representing Mr. Shuhi at that time.

- MR. FARROW: Your Honor, can I make some

comments as-she goes through that by paragraph?

MS. GWYNN: Can I just finish? The Court asked

me first, please.
There was no mention -- there was mentioning,

on paragraph 3 --
THE COURT: Ms. Gwynn, béfore you go further,

can you look on page 20, line 14. :What do I say? "

you are instructed not to file
any pleadings for anyone whd you don't currently

represent. " Isn t. that what paragraph 2 in their ordered

and adjudged saysT.

MS. GWYNN: Yes, Your Honor. However, I think
I clarified the réason why I filed it, because I was

representing Mr. Shuhi at that time.

THE COURT: T understand youf.argument.

~MS. GWYNN: Where is that reflected in this

order?

OUELLETTE & MAULDIN COURT REPORTERS
305-358-8875
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THE COURT: Paragraph 2. You just objected to

paragraph 2 of the order.

MS. GWYNN: Because paragraph 2 says more.

THE COURT : I'm talking about under the ordered .

and adjudged, Gwynn is a hereby precluded from'filing any

other —--
~MS. GWYNN: I'm sorry, Your Honor. I'm talking

‘about paragraph 2, the verbiage before the actual 6rder.

The wverbiage, Gwynn's motion, all of that paragraph,

that's what I'm referring that I object to, ‘all that

verbiageL because that's not what -- that does not
reflect argument —- 6r anything in the transcript of thé
Court's brder. ' |
. THE COURT: Paragraph 2, again, tell me —— T
| was looking at the wrong paragraph 2 when you --= so teil

me what is your problem with paragraph 2°?

- MS. GWYNN: Can I go from the- beginning,

because I think maybe we had -~ I was referiing to the
initial, this cause, all of that I objeét to, all that
verbiage before paraéraph 1, page 1. "Paragraph 1 is
accurate. Paragrépﬁ 2, before the Court's ruling is just

Rotella's self serving verbiage, that's not part of

the Court's ruling or the transcript. Paragraph 4 is

not -- that's'again{~Mr.ARotella's added verbiage, self

serving verbiage, and not part of the transcript.
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MR. ROTELLA: Judge, I trust you'll receive my

comment as it pertains to all this.
MS. GWYNN: And then it says, ordered and

adjudged, debtor's motion to strike Gwynn's motion is

granted. That's not what the Court ruled. There's

nowhere in this’ transcript that the Court granted the
debtor's motion. The Court denied my motion to clarify.

Spmehow the order got switched and granted his motion to

strike.

THE COURT: What else in the order?

MS. GWYNN: Paragraph 3, the Court.did make
-—- that the Court is

going to deny without prejudice the request to refer the

matter to the Florida Bar. That's in the transcript.
And again, paragraph 4, I don't believe the Court

reserved any jurisdiction to award attorneys fees ‘and

THEACOURT: Line 21, pagé 20.
MS. GWYNN: Okay. 8o I’d'just like ~- we

wouldn't be here. today if the 6rder would have reflected

what the Court heard. .

THE COURT: Mr.

MR. FARROW: . Your Honor, the comment that I
Dbes

Rotella or Mr..Farrow.

would have is more of a question than a comment.

Ms. Gwynn reéally believe that this Court doesn't have
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discretion to go beyond what happéned.in the transcript

and the record. That's number one.

Number two is that, with respect to her
objection to paragraph 2, and I'm not under the ordered
and aajudged, I'm under the --

;IOu know what, let mé start f— excuse me, let
me back up. -Ms. Gwynh 6bjected to what she considered to

be the verbiage of the, this cépse.havingicome before the

Court. . I don't see how any of that as far as the

appearances -
THE COURT: I agree. Move on.
MR. FARROW: Paragraph 1, I believe she had no

objection to.
THE COURT: To me the only real issue is

her motion to clarify or éranting your motion to strike.
To me that's the only two issues. :

MR. FARROW: With respect --

THE COURT: And-having read the ofder and

remembered the hearing and having reviewed the

transcript.

MR. FARROW: Your Honor, with respect to

paragraph 2, Gwynn's motion to clarify the record clearly
indicated, or it'was'filed on behalf of Florida Precision

Calipers, or Carl Shuhi, it was seeking'to somehow reach
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back into the removal trial and have evidence excluded on
the basis of authenticity when that issue was decided on
that date. As a matter of fact, at that hearing I read a
transcript whére Ms. Gwynnrsaid, I have no objection to
authenticityl The only issue was attorney client

privilege. 7
THE COURT: Go to the verbiage in paragraph 2.
I think the real only thing that I need argument ‘on is

after the second sentence. The first two sentences,

I think are completely, absolutely correct, true and

- correct.

MR. FARROW: Could we have a moment; Your
Honor? |

THE CQURT: Yes? My only qﬁesﬁion'is the last
sentence. '

MR. FARROW: Your Honor, we made argument at

the hearing that Mé.7Gwynn implicitly filed}this motion
not only on behalf of Fioridé'Precisiqn Calipers, but
also on béhalf of her associate or, I'm not going to say
friend, I'm just going to say assoéiate, Linda‘Waiden.
And her motion to clarify the record, if it was granted,
would have done nothing but help Ms. Walden's cause,
especially with reéards té Exhibit KKK, which are by far

the most damaging evidence ever admitted during the five

day removal trial over the course of six weeks.
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MS. GWYNN: Again, YourlHonor{ this is

iﬁproper; He's adding addifional information or argument

that's not included in the transcript. This is my

problem throughout all these orders. Somehow all this

“extra verbiage appears in these orders.

THE COURT: Mr. Farrow, let's talk about
whether it should be a motion denying her motion to

clarify, or a motion to strike, .granting your motion to

strike. _
MR. FARROW: To be honest with the Court, I

‘don't have -- I wouldn’t be able to have a position

unless I saw —- _
MR.- ROTELLA: And it might be helpful to know if

both of those matters were ‘on the docket for the same

mOrning.
MS5. GWYNN: There's not one mention of the

Court hearing your motion. The Court stated on page 11,

"The other quick matter in my opinion, is the motion to

clarify."” And that's what this whole rest of this

transcript is dealing with.

THE COURT: Hold on. This is what I'm going to |
I am going to amend the order to reflect that it is

Ms. Gwynn's motion to clarify the record that the Court

denied. And that's ‘at paragraph 2, the last serntence.

Frankiy, I agree, and it was my thought process, reflects
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my thought pracass, I guess I should say.
MS. GWXNN: So if I understand you correctly,
Your Honor;_that paragraph 2 is --

THE COURT: Well, I am amending the order to

reflect that it is not the motion to strike that was

granted, it is your motion to clarify that was denied.

MS. GWYNN: So paragraph 2,:with the .exception

of the —— I just want to make sure I understand correctly

.what is going to be 1ncluded in that paragraph

THE COURT Paragraph 1 under the ordered and

adjudged Should reflect debtor's -- Mary Alice Gwynn's

motion to strike -- or to clarify, is denied, whatever

the proper’title of the motion is, the title of the order

should reflect that. And in the preamble'it'should

reflect that was what was heard.' The rest of the

preamble is appropriate, the rest of the findings are

appropriate, and the rest of the ordered and adjudged is

appropriate. Got ir, Mr. Farrow?
MR.‘FARgowr-'Yes.'

MR. WALSH: Does that then reopen the motion
that the debtor filed as to precluding. and prohibiting
Gwynn from filing further pleadings?

That daes not change that

Ms.
THE COURT: No.

whatsoever. I.clearly o¢rdered she shall.hot file

pleadings for people, entities, or -any other person who
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she does not represent. _
, MR. WALSH: And the Court also denied referral

to the Florida Bar.
THE COURT: Without prejudice.

MR. WALSH: BSo that's stillicontained in this

order despite the fact that those reliefs were requested

that was filed here?

" THE COURT: Yes.

MS. GWYNN: Ybur_Honor, 50 péragraph 2, where

we have all that verbiage that was not réally arguéd or

mentioned, the Court is admitting that?

THE COURT: Yes. I agree with that.

MS. GWYNN: You égree with that beecause that -

was your thought proéess, but it wasn't included in the
transcript. _ IR
THE COURT:>_Yés; "And frankly,

at least indirectly argued,

I-think.it was
in the pleadings and was, and
that.wéS'certainly:my thought process[*that you were

trying to do something to protect the-former trustee who

had been removed for comitting perjury, et cetera

MS. GWYNN: Your Honor, again, .on Mr. Rotella

and myself eﬂdless battles on what the order should read
and what actually transplred at the hearing, this
if the Court will remember, this is -

Mary Alice Gwynn's motion to strike and\or vacate order
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graniing debtor's emergency motion to preclude Mary Blice
Gwynn from representing'Carl Shuhi and Florida Precision
pursuant to Mary Alice Gwynn's notice of limited

appearance on behalf of creditor Carl Shuhi.

This incident occurred when I filed a nqtice of

limited appearance to represent Mr. Shuhi at his

deposition, recent deposition. There was an emergency

hearing-that was held via telephone, and there was not a
court reporter, the way I understood it.

THE COURT: I don't -- -~
MR. ROTELLA: Of course there was a court

THE COURT: I was going to say, I don't conduct

any hearing without a court reporter.

MS. GWYNN: Well, T had my paralegal -— I had

both to call'the court reporter that's used and they said

get” a transcript.
THE COURT: Mr. Rotella, I don't know which

court reporter you used ~-

MR. ROTELLA: I don't know, Judge, but

certainly we had a court reporter.

MR. FARROW: I believe it was Kline Barry and

Associates, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.
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MS. GWYNN: So you actually called the court

reporter, it was not conducted from your chambers, Your
Honor?

THE COURT: The way I conduct this type of

telephone hearing is, I ask one of the parties, usually

the movant, to have a court reporter in their presence,

put me on the speaker phone, I will call into that

number. I thought frankly, you were present in the room,

but T don't recall in this particular instance, but there

was —— I always-ask_dne of the parties'tbAhave a court
reporter, and I»always verify, or at least try

to remember to verify that there is a court reporter

present. Méybe‘they conferenced you in. I don't recall.

But my recollection is Mr. Shuhi was on the phone —-

MS. GWYNN: He was in -- Mr. Shuhi was in my

| office, he was on the phone, correct.

ngl,vagain, Your Honor, I don't have the

transcripﬁ to compare, but again --
THE COURT: Lét;s léok at the order and téll us
whét it is you object to.
MS. GWYNN: Well, first.of all, this is a

pattern of practice with Rotella's. office.

THE COURT: I don't need to hear that again.

“Just tell me what in the order is not proper.

MS. GWYNN: For the record, Your Honor, T
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didn't even get these -- these were faxed to me at 8 a.m.

I believe it.was._ The hearing was held, if you recall,

late in the afternoon.
'THE COURT: Yes, ma'am.
MS. GWYNN: And then the very next day was

Mr. Shuhi's deposition. Let me get the time line here.

MR. ROTELLA: And of:course, Your Honor, the

purpose was to have an order in place before Mr. Shuhi

‘and Ms. Gwynn arrived together as they happened to

-come .

THE COURT: I asked what is not reflective of

my order.
MS. GWYNN: Well, the order, without going into

all the verbiage in the order, basically the order was

sent to me in route while I was driving to Mr. Rotella's

office for the_depésition, it said, please review and get

back to —49you~know, if you have ény conéerns. Well, by

the time I get to Mr. Rotella's office at 10 a.m. the

order was already signed. So I never even had —- o

THE COURT: Let's .assume that's true. Now what

is yoﬁr problem with the order?

| Ms. GﬁYNN; The order is, again, Mr. Rotella'é
patterh of practice that is'including self serving
verbiage which did not occur duriﬁg.our phone‘

conversation. For instance, on page 2 he's bringing in
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all the dialogue that went on at the April 4th, 2005
hearing. On my motion he brings —-

THE COURT: Which paragraph are you looking at?
MS. GWYNN: Paragraph‘l. . Your Honor, basically

there's all the verbiage on page 2, 3, 4,

5, leading up to the Court's actual ruling on page 6. -If

you recall, that actual hearing only took about ten

minutes at the most. To get flve pages of verblage,

again, hlS is what Mr. Rotella does, he asserts
arguments and thlngs were brought up in prev1ous hearings

11-[ that were actually not brought up at the present hearlng

to. bolster hls position. Then when we get down to the

ordered_and adjudged, the only thing that I agree with is .

paragraph 1, paragraph 2.

THE COURT: Okay.
MS. GWYNN: Paragraph 3.

THE COURT: You agree with those?

MS. GWYNN: Yes. Because this is what the

Court ruled on its -~ all the self serving verbiage of

‘arguments that he tried to incorporate to bolster his

That was not part of the hearing. The hearing

took ten minutes.
THE COURT: Téll me which part under the

ordered and adjudged does not reflect the Court's ruling,

please.
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MS. GWYNN: Paragraph 5.
THE COURT: Paragraph 5 does not? I recall
reserving jurisdiction to'assess sanctions. I routinely

do that._ Because generally at the time of these types of
emergency hearings I do not expect‘the party prevailing

to be able to teli me exactly how much in attorneys fees

'they-are'entifled to and how much .in costs they've

I routinely reserve.

incurred.
_ MS. GWYNN: You’jusf do.that and then have an
entitlement énd then make a ruling that -- okay. |
THE COURT: Frankly, I'don't think there's —- I
haveﬁ't:m- I didn’t say there was entitlement, I said I

reserve jurisdiction to award.
MS. GWYNN: I guess, Your Honor, just for the

record I just wanted -- this.has been a continuous

problém.
THE COURT: - Is there anything in the verbiage

that is not accurately reflecting the record?

MS. GWYNN: Your Honor, the only thing that
reflects the record,_witﬁout.the transcfipt, would be
what is ordered and‘adjudged. All this other first,
second, thi?d; fourth, Five pages, is hothiﬁg more than

Mr. Rotella's self serving verbiage that, if this was all

addressed at that_telephonic'hearing it would have been

40 minutes. It was ten..
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MR. ROTELLA: Those previous pages,bJudge, are
the record. They are very exdcting. They are documented

in terms of where the information comes from, or the

verbiage, i1f Ms. Gwynn prefers that word, that order is

extremely exacting. We have never given you an order

that wasn't exacting. We have painstakingly assured that

they are exacting, because we don't want to hear .you say,

you gave me a bad order.

THE COURT: Ms. Gwynn, I think the order does

| reflect the record. I am inhtimately familiar with the

record in this case. I am intimately familiar with what

the court orders'sayy‘what the pleadingS'séy,,because-
they are revisited over and over again. and I'm denying
your motion concerning that order.

MR. FARROW: Your Honer, would you be reserving

jurisdictibn as to these particular matters as well?
MR.-ROTELLA: .Judge} coﬁid we take five or ten
minutes to get turned éroun& énd maybe run to the men's
room oOr ladies‘ room as fhé case may be?
THE COURT; Sure.

MS. GWYNN: Your Honor, I believe then that my

order thét.we just ruled on the motion to clarify that
we're going to correct, I'm also going to reserve for

attorney fees and costs for having to bring this to

clarify the order.
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THE COURT: On the last one I'll deny any

request for sanctions under the last one because I denied

your motion. ‘You'll only get sanctions if your motion is

grantéd,Aor if your objection is sustained.
Before we get started I want to la& 6ut the
parameters‘fof this afternoon. Sit down. The last
matter that's before me is Mr. Rotella's motion for
sanctions based on a pleading filed by you, Ms. Gwynn,
whereiﬁ.the essence of his motion ié, you.filed a motion

making numerous allegations that had no basis in fact,

the issues do not relate to anything not alleged.

' The way I ém planning on conducting this-
hearing is, Mr. Rotella has$ the initial burden of
showing, and it may be his own testiﬁdny; that -those

allegations as to he or his client are incorrect. Once

hé puts on a prima facie case on that.you-then have-a

17 | burden of ?efuting that, in essence saying ves, I did

have a basis in fact to make those allegations.:
I'm not going to permit testimony or

introduction of evidence on any issues not directly

Gwynn.
What made me éven think about this is the idea

that you're going to call Ms. Menotte: - My review of the

pleadings'doesn't-have any allegation concerning Ms.
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